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Financial Highlights

(Unit : Million Baht)

Meeting session 1/2013 to be held in April 2013.

Description 2012 2011 2010
Sales 1,534.69 1,408.99 1,201.27
Total Revenues 1,556.46 1,429.78 1,222.04
Gross Profit 298.15 247.87 233.70
Net Profit 91.04 60.88 53.27
Total Assets 920.09 847.28 791.59
Current Assets 564.11 493.83 411.83
Total Liabilities 169.06 167.29 144.81
Current Liabilities 155.00 154.25 144.81
Shareholders’ Equity 751.03 679.99 646.77
Financial Ratios

Description 2012 2011 2010
Gross Margin / Sale (%) 19.43 17.59 19.45
Net Profit / Total Revenue (%) 5.85 4.26 4.36
Return on Equity (%) 1212 8.95 8.24
Return on Total Assets (%) 10.30 7.43 6.90
Current Ratio (Times) 3.64 3.20 2.84
Cash Cycle (Days) 67 51.61 4473
Debt to Equity Ratio (Times) 0.23 0.25 0.22
Book Value per Share (Baht) 93.88 84.99 80.85
Earning per Share (Baht) 11.38 7.61 6.66
Dividend per Share (Baht) * 2.50 2.00
Pay out Ratio (%) * 32.85 30.03

Remark: Dividend payout for the year 2012 will be subject to the resolution of Shareholders’ General




Message from Board of Directors

Dear Shareholders of Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited:

In 2012, Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited (THIP), was continue to grow steadily
though affected by various factors for instance; the volatility of the value baht, Global economy slowdown
under such a challenge to the operation of the Board of Directors of the Company. These are the driving

force to operate more efficiently by Management team, steady growth and strength for the company.

From the better Operating results, it can reflect to the successful of the company (THIP),
consistently. As you can see that over the past years, revenue from selling was high value to 1,534.69
million baht, up from last year 125.69 million baht with growth rate 8.92% and net profit 91.04 million baht,
up from last year 30.16 million baht with growth rate 49.54%. The increasing of growth rate was from the
high demand of the products from customers including a variety of products to meet the high volume of

customer’s need.

The dedicated work of employees and management of the company were lead to the operating
performance of the company with continuously growth, also the potential and the growth of the company.
Consequently, the company had been selected to get the best award for Outstanding Company
Performance Set Market Capitalization of THB 10 Billion or less 4th Group) at “SET Awards 2012” by the

Stock Exchange of Thailand.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited, thanks all the
shareholders, customers, Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), business partners and all our
employees for their valuable contributions to the performance of the company. We will continue to

expand production capacity and new innovation for stability and company'’s strengths respectively.

%&qg LN

Dr. Ing. Phietoon Trivijitkasem
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited



Report of the Audit Committee 2012

The Audit Committee of Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited consists of three independent directors.
In 2012, 5 meetings were held with full attendance. Occasionally, as necessary, the Committee consulted the
Managing Director, the management, the external auditor, the internal auditor. The Committee, then, reported

its views and recommendations to the Board of Directors.

1. Review of financial statement : The Audit Committee reviewed significant information the Quarterly
and Year End financial statements of the Company, together with the auditors and management for
integrity and propriety prior to proposing them to the Board for approval. The review focused on material
accounts. Changes, adjustments, provisions, estimates as well as significant information disclosures to
ensure that they were properly stated, clear, adequate, timely and meaningful for the shareholders and
other users of the published financial statements. From the reviews conducted, the Audit Committee was

of the opinion that the financial statements of the Company in 2012 were complete, accurate.

2. Review of the internal control and Internal audit : The Audit Committee reviewed the adequacy of
internal control of the Company on a regular basis from the reports of both internal and external audit. The
Audit Committee would bring major items of concern to attention of the Board together with the remedial
action to be taken. This approach encouraged management of the Company to ensure adequate and
effective internal control in achieving business focus, operations efficiency, safeguard of assets, and
people management. Overall, the Audit Committee was of the opinion the Company has adequate

internal and management control.

3. Transactions with potential conflicts of interest : The Audit Committee reviewed relevant connected
transactions or transactions with potential conflicts of interest for compliance with laws and SET
regulations to ensure that they were reasonable and yielded maximum benefits to The Company. The
Audit Committee considered these connected transactions normal, sensible, as well as yielding
maximum benefits to The Company. They gave comments to the management as a guideline for The

Company’s operational standard.

4. Compliance with the SEC and SET laws and regulation and other laws relevant to the Company’s
business: The Audit Committee in its reviews. Also monitored to ensure the Company was in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations of the SEC and SET, as well as other laws relevant to the business of the
Company. The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the Company was in compliance with the relevant laws,

rules, and regulations applicable to the Company in 2012.

5. The Report to the Board of Directors : The Audit Committee reviews internal audit quarterly report to
the Board of Directors, which provided useful recommendations to management to improve overseeing

business efficiency which were adopted.



6. Considered and Appointment of External Auditor :. In 2012, the Audit Committee met independently
with the external auditor. No material financial reporting issues were raised, Overall, the Audit Committee
was of the opinion that the auditor had performed suitably in 2012. In the meeting to recommend auditor
and the audit fee to the Board , The Audit Committee took into account the scope of audit work and other
service. For 2013, The Audit Committee recommended the appointment of either Mr.Phichai
Dachanapirom or Ms.Sulalit Ardsawang or Ms.Wannisa Ngambouthong from Dharmniti Auditing Co., Ltd,
as company’s independent auditor for year 2011. The review concluded that Dharmniti Auditing Co., Ltd,

as professional standard.

7. Considered and Appointment of Internal Auditor : In 2012, the Audit Committee has a meeting with
management, which has been agreed of the selection internal auditor of the professional standards is
accepted and can be audit efficiency. Including the independently to report facts which appearance on
the audit committee. Internal audit will help to corporate governance and internal control system
effectively. In year 2013, the Audit Committee has selected of internal auditors based on that experience
which the internal audit and audit of the property. The Audit Committee recommended the appointment of
Quantum Point Consulting Co., Ltd, as company’s internal auditor for year 2013.The audit Committee has

considered and approved internal audit plan and scope of the year.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

As of 6 March 2013
Ta~

Assoc.Prof. Banleng Sornil

Chairman of the Audit Committee



General Information

Name

Head Office Address

Branch Office Address

Investor Relation
Business Type
Registered Number

Registered Capital

Issued and Paid-up
Capital
Corporate Entities in

which THIP Hold Shares
for More Than 10%

Share Registrar

Name

Address

Auditor
Name

Address

:Thantawan Industry Public Co., Ltd. (THIP) formerly known as Blowtech
(Thailand). The company was transformed into a public limited company and
then granted approval to be a listed company in the Stock Exchange of

Thailand on November 19, 1994.

:143 - 144 Soi Kangwal 2, Phetkasem Road
Omyai, Sampran, Nakornpathom 73160
Tel. (662) 811-4700-7, 0-2431-3051-5, Fax(662)420-3180, 0-2431-3056

:123 Suntowers Building 32 A Fl.,Vibhawadee Road,
Jomphol, Jatujuk Bangkok, 10900
Tel.(662) 273-8333, Fax (662) 2738282,2738484

Website www.thantawan.com

:Tel (662)273-8333 Ext. 3244, E-mail address : irthip@thantawan.com

: Produce and Export Plastic packaging and plastic products
: 0107537001749 (Original PLC. No. 421)

: Common Stock: 10,000,000 Shares

par value Baht 10 per share, Total Baht 100 Million

: Common Stock: 8,000,000 Shares,

par value Baht 10 per Share, Total Baht 80 Million

- None-

: Thailand Securities Depository Co.,Ltd.
. 4th, 7th Fl., The Stock Exchange of Thailand Bldg.,
62 Rachadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110.

Tel.(662) 229-2800 Fax.(662) 359-1262-3

: Dharmniti Auditing Co.,Ltd.
: 267/1 Pracharaj 1 Rd., Bangsue, Bangkok, 10800.

Tel.(662)587-8080 Fax.(662) 586-0301



Features of Business

Features of Products

The company’s objective is to engage in production and marketing of plastic products. These

plastic products consist of 2 main categories:

1. Products made from Low density Polyethylene (LDPE) that have a unique quality, softly and

very clear suit for the customer who wants to see their goods inside; there are a lot of LDPE

goods such as Zip bags (auto opened-closed) general bags which are used to pack

vegetable and fruit to maintain its freshness. Products made from High density Polyethylene

(HDPE )that have a unique quality, stinginess and stickiness suit for the customer who wants a

strong bags such as garbage bags and food bags.

2. Products made from Poly propylene (PP) that is Drinking Straws; there are variety

such as straight straws, spoon straws, and flexible straws and so on.

styles

In the other hand, we also brought some other appliance products from other manufacturer and

resell to customers or made to the customers order.

Revenue Structure Classified by Product Lines

Table 1 : Revenue Structure Classified by Product Lines in 2010-2012

(Unit : Million Baht)

2012 2011 2010
Product Line
Revenue As % Revenue As% Revenue As%
General Bag and Thin Bag 1,169.83 76.23 1,054.99 74.88 922.95 76.83
Drinking Straw 236.09 15.38 206.16 14.63 175.00 14.57
Other Product 128.77 8.39 147.84 10.49 103.32 8.60
Total 1,5634.69 100 1408.99 100.00 1,201.27 100.00
Increase (Decrease)
Rate from previous year 8.92 17.29 16.81

Marketing and Competition Condition

(A) Marketing

The most products of THIP is made to the customers order and distributed to domestic sale and

export sale as a schedule below;




Table 2 : Domestic and Export sale table as of December 31,2012. (Unit: Million Baht)

List of items Bags product Straws product General product Total
Abroad 959.07 159.66 37.88 1,156.61
Domestic 210.76 76.43 90.89 378.08

Total 1,169.83 236.09 128.77 1,534.69
Abroad (%) 81.98 67.63 29.42 75.36
Domestic (%) 18.02 32.37 70.58 24.64
Table 3 : Export sale by region table as of December 31,2012. (Unit: Million Baht)

List of items Bags product Straws product General product Total
Europe Union 535.85 126.89 37.50 700.24
America 87.99 14.44 0.00 102.43
Asia 164.02 14.73 0.33 179.08
Australia and New 169.22 3.60 0.05 172.87
Zealand
Others 1.99 0.00 0.00 1.99

Total 959.07 159.66 37.88 1,156.61

The Customer of Export Sale
1. Importers under their own brands: The customer who is importer and distributors under their own
brand and they also manage their marketing strategies by own too.
2. Importers for stores: The customer who is importer and distributors for the stores only

3. wholesalers/distributors The customer who is importer and distributors for the retail stores.

During the year of 2012 the Company had a oversea customer with total orders 36.75 % of the

total sales.

The Customer of Domestic Sale
In case of domestic purchase, company has deal directly to customer who is the big

manufacturer.

(B) Competition Condition

Plastic bags are the most production of plastic products in Thailand that over 50% of plastic
products. But the plastic bag is quite low profit margin because there is a high competition in plastic
bags business at the present. There are 1,790 industries of plastic product in Thailand as of December

31,2012. Reference by www.diw.go.th (product code no.05304)

There are more than big 10 manufactures of plastic bag product in Thailand, each may have a type
and features of products that are slightly different. The most competitive pricing, features of products and

service delivery. The company is considered manufacturers in the market for a long time, which has




advantages in the existing customer base. It is manufacturers to export large one in Thailand. The company

has production standards and the acceptance of overseas customers.

In addition to competition within countries. Industrial plastic bags still need to compete with foreign
manufacturers, as manufacturers from China. Vietnam, etc., which have developed products and take
advantage of low labor cost. Make products with lower prices of goods in Thailand and expand markets to

countries around the world.

However, products with a plastic bag usage by increasing market demand. Industry trends
continue to grow. The competitive environment is highly competitive in both domestic and international

prices remain about the product.

(C) Raw Materials Procurement

1. Appearance of the acquisition of products

The major raw materials used in our production process are Polyethylene and Polypropylene. The
company had maintained quality of raw materials which should meet the standard. Price was also an important
factor in making a decision and it was fluctuated due to market mechanisms therefore we had kept updating
the local and overseas resin prices, then we were able to acquired reasonable price of raw materials in that
market situation. In addition we planned to purchase raw material according to inventory turnover in order to

reduce inventory caring cost.

In 2012, company had purchased raw materials from local and overseas 20%:80%, which is
distributors in local about 30 manufactures and distributors in overseas about 13 manufactures. The company
did not completely purchase from one source therefore we did not sustain any risk on a shortage of supply. In
previous years, we did not visage a shortage of supply for raw material in our production method. Furthermore
we kept looking for new sources. In procurement method we had built up a good relationship with our suppliers
as tactical partner for shared profit.

Maximum annual production capacity of 14,000 tons per year for all products.

2. Environmental impact from production process or waste disposal

The company has attained standard for environmental management systems (ISO:14000). It is the
growing public awareness of environmental performance, including increased operations efficiency; assistance
with ensuring regulatory compliance by providing an overall system incorporating those that are applicable; and
facilitating business relationships. The company has obtained a specialist to be ISO auditor. Actual performance

during the past year, the company has no lawsuits or complaints about ruining the environment

3. BOI promotion certificates

In 2011, the company had been encouraging investment in environmentally friendly products
(Category 6.4) for film production and distribution of plastic film, plastic bags, plastic straws & etc. from
the Board of Investment of Thailand, according to promotion offer No. 2103 (1) / 2011 with benefits
received. In accordance with Section 25, 26, 28, 31 (paragraphs 2, 3, 4), 34, 35 (1), 35 (2), 35 (3), 36 (1),
36 (2), 37, based on the requirements of the Act, the Board of Investment B.E. 2520. Effective from
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March 2, 2010 is the date of the Board of Directors to support the investment promotion. The company
must comply with the conditions and requirements as specified to the above. For more information

benefits detail of each articles, please visit our website : www.boi.go.th.
Risk Factors

There are many some risk in the global business. Thus, we had to made a meeting every month

so that avoidable any risk and analytical a problems.

1) Risk relating to indecision in costs of raw material

The fundamental raw material for plastic products is Polyethylene resin (PE) this is a major cost in
the production of the company (About 49% of total revenue) and correlated to crude petroleum price. In
2012 the PE resin price was fluctuated in upper trend due to higher demand and crude oil price. During
the past periods, that purchased the PE from oversea at high volume. Hence, to be considered the
increase or decrease adjustment of volatility of oil price in the world market and currency fluctuations
according to the economy circumstance. Presently, the company has followed and considered the trend
of PE price. During the year of 2012, the last raw material prices are rising throughout the quarter 1 and
the decline since the middle of the second quarter, and prices rising throughout the fourth quarter.

The company had lessen the risk by keeping raw materials acquiring more sources of supplier
from local and overseas to be replacement for existing raw materials, strengthening business relation to
planned suppliers, including quickly adjusting the selling price to cope up with cost of production and
global market cost. This case brings good organization and helpfulness and also decreases price of

production and increase competitive benefit.
Raw material’s sources of supply in 2012 were classified as following:-

Table 4: Proportion of Raw Material Purchased

(Unit: Percent)

Description by weight by amount
Domestic purchase 20 20
Abroad purchase 80 80

2) Competitive Risk

Competition in the market is quite high in both domestic and foreign manufacturers, such as
China Vietnam and as will as in Thailand. Most of the competition in terms of price quality and delivery
time. These factors are very important for most manufacturers. And many manufacturers to produce more
products to market

The company focuses on quality control and standardization of products, including products that
are different from other manufacturers, Add value to their products and create new customers. The
company has a group of existing customers as partners for a long time. The order continued and

satisfaction with the quality of goods and services.




In 2012, The gross profit margin was 19.43% of total sales and net profit margin was 5.85% of
total revenue if the price dropped. And / or increased costs will affect gross margins. And net profit of the
company.

3) Risks of reliance on major customers
During the past two years, the company sold products to a major customer more than 30 percent

of total sales amount. The major customer is a trade partner with the company for over 18 years and

satisfaction with the quality products of the company.

However, the company recognizes the risk of reliance on major customer with the policy to
increase revenue from other existing customers and expanded new customers base in order to reduce
the reliance of the major customer where as quantity and total amount of the major customer were not

decreased accordingly

4) Financial Risk

Most of THIP’s products, about 40.36%, are for export, thus, there is an exchange rate risk between
Baht against foreign currencies. However, we have export traded with many countries and variety of currencies
worldwide, the company has revenue from foreign currency, approx. 40.36% of total sales. In addition the
company has purchased raw materials from overseas, approx. 80%. This has helped in mitigating the
exchange rate risk. The company also avoids the exchange risk through the natural hedging policy by creating
equilibrium of its advantages and accountability in foreign currencies. The surplus position will be hedged by
doing a forward agreement. In previous years the company has never come across financial problem since we
have well planned policy in capital and flexibility in good condition.

However, the Company is still the risk of exchange rate affects the difference between income
and cost of raw materials and foreign currency debt, so the fluctuation in exchange rates could affect

both positively and negatively to the company.
4) Risk from management

Sunflower Company Limited as a major shareholder holds 56.39% of shares outstanding of all.
Major shareholder may determine the direction of company management. However, THIP has followed
the principles of good corporate governance, including protection of minority shareholders. In addition, if
a vote to approve any action on a significant legal. THIP shall be resolved by a special shareholders

meeting in order to operate.

5) The risk of flooding

The company faced with natural disasters caused by flooding as the factory area is located to
Nakhon Pathom province with low slope and risk of flooding. However, the company has set Disaster
Prevention system,Flood protection and good drainage. Therefore, we had no damage from any disasters
over the past years. In addition, we have all kind of insurance risks and will review as specified to the above

for effectiveness prevention on a regular basis.
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Shareholders and Management

The first top ten major shareholders who names appeared on shareholder registry as of January

4, 2013 were as following;

Table : 5 The First Top Ten Major Shareholders

No. Name of Shareholders Number of Shares %
1 Sunflower company limited 4,511,500 56.39
2 Thai NVDR Company Limited 1,011,300 12 64

3 Mr.Paul Liu Wai Yin 384,900 4.81

4 Mr.Vachira Thayanaraporn 200,100 2.50

5 Mr.Jentouch chawengsettakul 150,000 1.88

6 Mr.Prasert Khongrakiantiyot 148,000 1.85

7 Mr.Phoasing Nuangjamnong 127,000 1.59

8 Mr.Somsak chamnanthongpaiwan 115,400 1.44

9 Mr.Somkiat Limsong 115,400 1.44

10 Ms.Auraiwan Borwornkeeratikhajorn 100,000 1.25
Total 6,860,700 85.76

Source: Major Shareholders as of January 4, 2013 prepared by Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.

The investors can find for more information in website: www.set.or.th before Annual General

Shareholders Meeting for the year 2013 date.

As of January 1, 2013, Shareholding structure and holdings as below :

4 \
Thantawan Group
Co..Ltd
\
100.00 %
4 \
Sunflower Enterprise
Co., Ltd
. | J
97.99 % ¢ \l/ 100.00 %
Bangkok Terminal
Sunflower Co., Ltd
Co., Ltd
100.00 % w ' v 56.39 %

Thantawan Industry

PCL.

Suntowers Co., Ltd
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Shareholding Structure, Major Shareholders and List of Board of Director. (As of January,1 2013)

Name of Company/Type of Business

Major Shareholders

List of Board of Director

1.Thantawan Group Co., Ltd.

Share Capital Authorized,lssued and fully
paid-up share capital 310,000,000 Baht.
Share capital authorized 3,100,000 Ordinary
Share

Type of Business : Holding Company

1.Mr.Nam Mahathitirat 51.00%Number of shares1,581,000
Shares

R.Adpower Co., Ltd 16.30 % Number of Shares 505,300 Shares.
3.Mr.Phasit Atsamongkon 12.50 % Number of Shares 387,500
Shares.

4 .Mrs.Sukanya Namfa 9.70 % Number of Shares300,700 Shares.
5.Mr. Pacorn Yinaudsawapan 3.50 %Number of Shares 108,500
Shares.

6.Mr.Phietoon Trivijitkasem 3.50 % Number of Shares108,499
Shares.

7.Mrs.Nantana Mahathitirat 3.50 % Number of Shares108,500
Shares.

8.Mrs.Chayanut Chamnanaua Number of Shares 1 Shares.

1.Mr.Nam Mahathitirat
2.Mr.Phietoon Trivijitkasem
3.Mrs.Pojanard Prinyapatpakron

4 Mr.Teerachai Siritunyanont

2.Sunflower Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Share Capital Authorized,lssued and fully
paid-up share capital 300,000,000 Baht.
Share capital authorized 3,000,000 Ordinary
Share

Type of Business : Holding Company

1.Thantawan Group Co.,Ltd 100 % Number of Shares 2,999,994
Shares.
2. Mr.Nam Mahathitirat Number of Shares 5 Shares.

3.Ms.Narissai Mahathitirat Number of Shares 1 Shares.

1.Mr.Nam Mahathitirat
2.Mr.Phietoon Trivijitkasem
3.Mrs.Pojanard Prinyapatpakron
4.Ms.Narissai Mahathitirat

5.Mr.Teerachai Siritunyanont

3. Sunflower Co., Ltd.

Share Capital Authorized,lssued and fully
paid-up share capital 70,000,000 Baht.
Share capital authorized 70,000 Ordinary
Share.

Type of Business : Holding Company

1.Sunflower Enterprise Co., Ltd. 97.99 % Number of Shares
68,595 Shares.

2.Mr.Phichai Tangvitetkit 2.00% Number ofShares1,400 Shares.
3.Mr.Nam Mahathitirat Number of Shares 5 Shares.

1.Mr.Nam Mahathitirat
P.Mr.Phietoon Trivijitkasem
3.Mrs.Pojanard Prinyapatpakron

4.Mr.Teerachai Siritunyanont

4 .Suntowers Co., Ltd.

Share Capital Authorized,lssued and fully
paid-up share capital 500,000,000 Baht.
Share capital authorized 5,000,000

Ordinary Share

Type of Business : Office Rental

1.Sunflower Co., Ltd.100 % Number of Shares 4,999,998 Shares.
R.Mr.Nam Mahathitirat Number of Shares 1 Shares.

3.Mrs.Nantana Mahathitirat Number of Shares 1 Shares.

1.Mr.Nam Mahathitirat
2.Mr.Phietoon Trivijitkasem
3.Mrs.Pojanard Prinyapatpakron
4 Mr.Viroon Powlinjong

5. Mr.Teerachai Siritunyanont

5. Bangkok Terminal Co., Ltd

Authorized Share Capital 2,500,000,000 Baht.
Issued and fully paid-up share capital
1,000,000,000 Baht.

Share capital authorized 250,000,000 Ordinary

Share
Type of Business : Investment in Real

Estate

1. Sunflower Enterprise Co.,Ltd. 100 % Number of Shares
249,999,940 Shares.

2.Mr.Nam Mahathitirat Number of Shares 10 Shares.
3.Mr.Phietoon Trivijitkasem Number of Shares 10 Shares.
4.Mrs.Pojanard Prinyapatpakron Number of Shares 20 Shares.

5.Mr.Viroon Powlinjong Number of Shares 10 Shares.

6. Mr.Teerachai Siritunyanont Number of Shares 10 Shares.

1.Mrs.Pojanard Prinyapatpakron
P.Mr.Viroon Powlinjong

3.Mr.Teerachai Siritunyanont
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Structure of Management

As of January 1, 2013. THIP has had organization structure as below:

Board of Risk

Board of Directors

Board of Audit Committee

Management

Board of Executive

Director

Managing Director

Internal Audit

Research & Development

Administation Division l Division
General Manager
Marketing Export Sales Domestic Operation Accounting Finance
Division Division Sales Division Division Division Division

THIP’s management structure as of January 1, 2013 consisted of

1.

> e

Board of Directors
Board of Executive Directors
Board of Audit Committee

Board of Risk Management
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Table 6 : Name List of All Board of Company As of January 1 ,2013

Director Names Board of Directors Executive Board Audit Committee Risk Management *
Mr. Phietoon Trivijitkasem / - - -
Mrs.Pojanard Prinyapatpakorn / / - /
Mr. Viroon Powlinjong / / - /
/ -
Mr. Surasak Luangaramsri** / And Executive -
Board Secretary
Ms. Narissai Mahathitirat / / - -
Mr. Banleng Sornil / - / -
Pol.Col. Taweepun Sangprasert / - / -
Mr. Singhchai Aroonvuthiphong / - / /
/
Audit Committee
Mr. Teerachai Siritunyanont And Company / -
Secretary
Secretary
Risk Management
Mr.Wichit Pansrimangkorn - - -
Secretary

* Resolution of the Board of Directors Meeting No. 4 / 2012 on August 10,2012 to Appointed of Board of Risk Management.

** Appointed on March 1, 2012.

a) Board of Directors

In accordance with Articles of Association., the company has defined total of Directors for 9
persons, consists of Representative Directors of Major shareholder, Directors from Executive 6 persons
and Independent Directors 3 persons. Board of Directors can perform their duties for the conduct of
general operations with efficiency as of January 1 2013. Board of Directors have been elected 9 persons
as naming list to time table 6th.

The Board of director has defined the independence of directors in accordance with the
regulations of the SEC and the SET as follow:

1. A person who holds no more than 0.5% of paid-up capital of the company or conflict of juristic
person. (Including related person under Section 285 of Securities Laws).

2. Being a non-executive director in the management of the company and not being an
employee, staff or consultant regularly receiving monthly salary from the company including not being
consultant of auditor, or other consultant or the authorized person of the company or conflict of related

person, including not having benefits or interests in such a manner.
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3. A person with no business connections with the company such as neither being customers,

stakeholders, creditor nor debtor. He/she must not have any direct or indirect benefits or interests either

in financial or in the management of the company or in conflict of juristic person.

4. Being director who is neither related to nor be a closed relative of the company’s executives

or major shareholders including not be appointed as representative to maintain the interests of the major

shareholders.

Number or name of directors authorized to sign for binding the company are :

Mr. Phietoon Trivijitkasem, Mrs.Pojanard Prinyapatpakorn, Mr. Viroon Powlinjong, Ms. Narissai

Mahathitirat Mr.Surasak Luangarmsri and Mr. Teerachai Siritunyanont two of these Six directors jointly

sign together and affix the common seal of the company.

Scope of Authorities of the Board of Directors

1.

10.

11.

Board of Directors have functions and responsibilities in managing the Company to comply
with objectives and regulations of company and adopt the resolutions of general
shareholders’ meeting with honesty and concern to benefit to the Company.

Board of Directors determine the Company’s policy and strategy.

Board of Directors consider and approve annual plan and budget of the company

Board of Directors consider and approve on purchase and disposal of assets and an
acquisition and participation in a joint venture project, which is in compliance with
company’s regulations and objectives and not having a conflict with the SET’s rules.

Board of Directors will be responsible to prepare a financial report and control in trustful,
they also manage risk and provide adequate internal audit system.

Board of Directors have functions and responsibilities in solving conflict of interests,
protecting improper using of company’s assets and connected transactions.

Board of Directors may assign Executive Board and or Audit Committee any special
assignments to achieve the Company’s objectives.

Board of Directors may appoint a managing director or authorize any other person to
perform any action for the Company’s businesses under the supervision of the Board of
Directors, however, the Board of Directors has the sole discretion to revoke or modify such
designated director or power of attorney.

Board of Directors have authorization to appoint and determine the duties of subcommittee

Board of Directors must arrange the Annual meeting by the fourth month from the end of
each accounting period.

Board of Directors manages to prepare the Company’s balance sheet and Profit and Loss
statements as of the end of each accounting period, annual report presenting to the general

meeting of shareholders for approval.
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b) Executive Board
Company has executive director 5 persons. Names list of executive board show on table 6.

Scope of Authorities of Executive Board

1. Assisting in managing and supervising the corporate management in accordance to policies
adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors.

2. Being the representatives of the Board of Directors to cooperate with Managing Directors.

3. Participating in decision making which shall be done for those significant matters as
presented by the Managing Director, in emergency cases to enable smooth operation of the
business.

4. Undertaking preliminary consideration on selecting the Company’s directors before
proposing for the Board of Directors’ approval.

5. Managing other missions as assigned by the Board of Directors.

c) Audit Committee
As of January 1, 2013, the company had Audit Committee and Independent Director of the

company’ Board of Directors total 3 persons with qualified, according to the Stock exchange of

Thailand with a qualification and scope of Audit Committee operations. To conduct check and

balance business operations of the company with accuracy and the interests of shareholders.

As adhere to table 6 contains the Naming list of Audit Committee and Independent Directors.

Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of Audit Committee

1. To ensure that the Company’s financial reporting is accurate and adequate.

2. To ensure that the Company’s internal control and internal audit systems are appropriate
and effective, to consider the independence of the Internal audit department and to give its
opinion on the appointment, transfer or dismissal of the head of the internal audit department
or such other department as has responsibility for internal audit and/or to consider, to
propose internal audit from outsource firm.

3. To ensure that the Company operates in accordance with the law relating to securities and
the Stock Exchange and with regulations of the Stock Exchange and law relating to the
Company’s business.

4. To consider the selection and nomination of independent individuals to perform duties as the
Company’s External auditors/Internal Auditors, and to propose their remuneration; to attend
meetings with the External auditors/Internal Auditors, without management departments
being present, at least once a year.

5. To consider related party transactions and transactions likely to give rise to a conflict of
interest so as to ensure that they are conducted in accordance with the law and with
regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand so as to provide confidence that such

transactions are fitting and proper and in the Company’s best interests.
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6. To deliver a report on the Audit Committee’s activities for publication in the Company’s
Annual Report, such report to be signed by the Chairman of Audit Committee and must
contain at least the following information:

6.1 Its opinion on the accuracy, completeness and reliability of the Company’s financial
statements

6.2 Its opinion on the adequacy of the Company’s internal control systems.

6.3 Its opinion on the Company’s compliance with the law relating to securities and the
stock exchange and with regulations of the stock exchange and laws relating to the
Company’s business.

6.4 Its opinion on the suitability of the auditors.

6.5 Its opinion on likely to give rise to conflict of interest.

6.6 The number of times the Audit Committee has met, together with individual attendance
details

6.7 Its opinion or general observations based on the performance of its duties as per its charter.

6.8 Any other matters that it considers shareholders and investors generally should know
within the scope of action, duties and responsibilities assigned to it by the Company’s
board of Directors.

7. To carry out any other duties assigned to it by the Company’s Board of Directors with the
agreement of the Audit Committee.

d) Risk Management

In accordance with the Board of Directors Meeting No. 4/2012, held on August 10, 2012. The

meeting resolved unanimously to approve the appointment of Risk Management Committee to
oversee the risk management of the company and manage as adhere to the goals set by the

company which will be effective from January 1, 2013 onwards. Risk Management Committee
consists of 3 persons (as attached of table 6).

Policy of Risk Management
1. To reduce damage that may occur from any events and impact to the company with an
acceptable level.

2. Setthe Risk Management process to the same standard as entire organizational.

3. Responsible for various tasks, set objectives of department, schedule risk assessment and
Key risk indicators including reports as adhere to the company’s risk management process.

4.  On going monitoring and reviewing risk, comply with surroundings both internal and
external and change regularly.

5.  Oversee the implementation of risk management as part of normal operations.

Selection criteria and appointment

- Recruit from the Boards of Directors and Managements.

- Three- year term, The Board of Directors and Managements can reappoint to the position.
Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of Risk Management Committee

Set Risk management policy and Risk management framework of the company, covers
significant risk.
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2. Setand review policy, Risk management process of the organization and Charter

compliance with changing condition.

3.  Support and develop Risk management at all levels of the organization including tools with

efficiency.

N o A

e) Executive

Set strategy to comply with the company’s risk management policy.
Monitoring and risk control of the company at an acceptable level.
Oversee and review the importance of Risk management report with an acceptable level.

Review to Board of directors with implementation on a regular basis.

Executive must have the ability, ethical and experienced in business. Executive should manage with

honesty and care for the interests of the company and intends to continue operations. And no way prohibited

under announced Securities and Exchange Commission. Names list of executive show as below:

Table 7: Name List of The Company Executive

Name

Position

1. Mrs. Pojanard Prinyapatpakorn

Managing Director

2. Mr. Surasak Luangaramsri

General Manager

3. Mr. Chairat Sangchan*

Vice president Administation Division

4. Mr. Thadpong Thitihiranmethi

Vice president-Research & Development Division

Acting Vice president-Operation Division

5. Mr. Titipong Tempati

Vice president- Export Sales Division

6. Mr. Jarukit Klongsara **

Vice president- Domestic Sales Division

*kk

7. Mr. Manas Thongpruksalai

Acting Vice president -Domestic Sales Division

*kkk

8. Mr. Sumeth Puwarie

Vice President- Asian Sales Division

9. Ms. Nasaree Ansusinha

Vice president- Marketing Division

10. Mr. Chaivech Kongkasaen *****

Vice President-Operation Division

11. Mr. Wichit Pansrimangkorn

Vice President-Accounting Division

12. Mr. Teerachai Siritunyanont

Vice President-Finance Division

*

** Resigned on May 1,2012.

*** Appointed on January 1,2013.
% Resigned on September 1, 2012.
***** Resigned on March 31, 2012.

Selection of Directors and Executives

Appointed on May 28 , 2012 and Resigned on January 1, 2013.

On selection of directors, the Company does not have a specific committee doing selection, but

the Executive Board will undertake initial screening and propose nominee to the Board of Directors for

consideration, and the final step is getting approval from the general shareholders’ meeting Additionally,

the company gives an opportunity to one or several shareholders holding from 5% of total shares with
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voting rights. They have the right to nominate candidates to be considered for election as Directors in the
Annual General Shareholders Meeting 2013, effective from October 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012.
Please send document (s) to Secretary of the company, then present to the Board of Directors. To
consider qualified nominee (s) for the election as Directors in accordance with requirement of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand; besides request for an approval from shareholders in the meeting. And executive
search company in the past has considered the selection of management knowledge and experience to
be approved by the Board of Directors.

The condition on selection of independent directors is to select one person who is specialist in
Plastic Industry, a person who has an ability and knowledge on Lawsuit and the other who is in
accounting field or obtains CPA, and Mr.Singchai Aroonvutthiphong who has experience to reviewed
financial statement. Those three persons will be considered by the board of directors and will submit to
the shareholders’ meeting for approving.

The company has not appointed the Remuneration Committee. However, it has set the remuneration’s
director subject to the approval of the shareholders' meeting. The remuneration of executive is approval of the

Board. The remuneration of director and executive base on same industrial

Election of Directors through the Shareholders’ Meeting

1.The director election has to be approved by the resolution of the general shareholders’ meeting.

2.The Company’s Board of Directors shall consist of not less than 5 and not less than half of the
total number of directors shall have their residence within the kingdom.

3.The shareholders’ meeting shall appoint the directors on the following criteria and procedures:

(1) A shareholder shall have one vote per one share held;

(2) Each shareholder shall be able to exercise all of his/her votes available on (1) to elect single
person director or several persons directors but splitting votes among the candidates is forbidden.

(3) The persons voted for highest scores in a descending order will be appointed directors
according to the number of directors so available or required at that time. If the voted persons in the
descending order have equal votes in excess of the number of directors so available or required, the
Chairman shall have a casting vote.

4. In each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors shall retire from office. If the number
of directors is indivisible into 3 parts, the one nearest to one-third shall apply.

Sunflower Co., Ltd. Is a major shareholder at 56.39% ,therefore, the appointment of directors

may have to get approval from this group of shareholders.

The Remuneration of Directors and Management

1) In 2012, 9 Directors shall receive total monetary remuneration 2,490,000 baht as the 2012

annual general meeting details as follows:
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Table 8:The remuneration of directors in 2012 Unit : Baht
Name Position Remuneration
For 2012
Director who are Executive
Mr.Phietoon Trivijitkasem Chairman of Board of Director 300,000
Mrs.Pojanard Prinyapatpakorn Director 240,000
Mr.Viroon Powlinjong Director 240,000
Ms.Narissai Mahathitirat Director 240,000
Mr.Surasak Luangarmsri Director 200,000
Mr.Teerachai Siritunyanont Director & The Company Secretary 240,000
Director who are non-executive
Chairman of Audit Committee and
Mr.Banleng Sornil 390,000
independent director
Audit Committee and independent
Pol.Col.Taweepun Sangprasert 320,000
director
Audit Committee and independent
Mr.Singhchai Aroonvuthiphong 320,000
director
Total 2,490,000

2) Total Monetary Remuneration for the Executives Directors for 2012 Comprising of Salary and
Fringe Benefit, was Baht 17,981,636.08 for 6 Executive Directors.
3) Total Monetary Remuneration for Executives for 2012 Comprising of Salary and Fringe Benefit,

was Baht 14,954,000.00 for 9 Executive.

The Company’s policy is to remuneration only independent director. The remuneration of the
director should commensurate with their duties and responsibilities, be comparable to the industry

standard, and attractive enough to retain qualified director.

Remuneration for each management personnel is linked with the operating performance of the

Company and his/her working performance.

Corporate Governance Policy

The Company recognizes the significance of good corporate governance, and the Board is
strongly determined to set the process of good corporate governance as a standard, leading to the practice
across the organization. As a result, to ensure the company business compliance with good corporate
governance practices under its policy, which every director, executive and each staff member must
acknowledge, master and strictly observe. The Board constantly updates the principles and operational
guidelines as they believe that an effective system of good corporate governance will support the company

competitive potential. The Company’s business, leading to value appreciation for shareholders and
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balanced mutual benefits among all relevant parties. Details of the operation of corporate governance

activities are as seen below:

Chapter1 : Rights of Shareholders

The Company respects the basic rights of shareholders as the investors and owners of the
company by treating all shareholders equally and all shareholders can learn about the operations policies
or connected transactions in full through at the website www.set.or.th Shareholders can be confident that
their rights are protected at all times in detail as seen below :

1) Right to propose a meeting agenda of company directors. One shareholder or group of
shareholder who hold and aggregate of at least 5 percent of all issued shares is entitled to propose an issue,
or item, for the agenda at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. In 2011, the Company allowed
shareholders to propose issues or items to the agenda to the Company Secretary within 31 December 2012 to
the Board of Directors for consideration. If the Board of Directors refused any shareholders’ proposal, the
Board of Directors will clarify their reasons on the day of the meeting.

To propose Agenda and candidate to be nominated for election as Directors. the company
gives an opportunity to one or several shareholders holding from 4% of total shares with voting rights.
Have the right to propose agenda and nominate candidates to be considered for election as Directors in
the Annual General Shareholders Meeting 2013, effective from October 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012.
Please send document (s) to Secretary of the company then present to the Board of Directors for
consideration.

2) Company usually holds the annual general meeting of shareholders once a year within 4 months
from the date of balance sheet. The Company will fix a date time and venue for the meeting. The Company
may arrange and extraordinary meeting of shareholders if the Board of Directors has compelling and duly
reasons to do so.

The Company will send the notice of shareholders’ meeting to shareholders no less than 14 days
prior to the meeting date in order to allow time for the shareholders to review meeting’s agenda as well as to
provide the shareholders with sufficient information regarding the issues to be decided at the meeting. Each
agenda will be specified whether it is for acknowledgement, approval or for consideration. The Board’s
opinion will also be given for each agenda.

The Company will notify the shareholders of such meetings through a Thai newspaper for not less
than 3 consecutive days.

However, The Company allows shareholders to submit questions or issues in regards to the
company before the meeting in accordance, effective from March 15, 2013 to April 15, 2013 to Secretary
of the company.

The Shareholders are entitled to attend the shareholder's meeting. In the case where a shareholder
cannot attend the meeting, a proxy can be assigned to attend the meeting by completing a proxy from as
described in the form which will be enclosed together with the notice of the meeting. Alternatively, shareholder

has a right to appoint an independent director to vote on his behalf as a proxy.
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To attend the shareholders’ meeting, shareholders shall present certain documents to verify their
identities such as the identification card or passport. As for a proxy of a natural person, he/she must bring
proxy evidence such as the completed proxy form along with a copy of identification card or passport of the
shareholder. Where a proxy is assigned by a juridical person, he/she must bring proxy evidence such as the
proxy form along with a certified copy of business registration certificate. The Company will allow time for
shareholders to register before the meeting begins. The Company recognizes the importance of
shareholder’'s meeting, therefore the meeting will be attended by the Board of directors and chaired by the
Chairman of the Board. President, Chairman of each Board Committee and the external auditor or a legal
representative will also attend the meetings to listen to opinions and answer the questions raised by
shareholders.

3) The Company has expanded the method of advertising the shareholder's meeting and the

related documents through the Company’s website www.thantawan.com in Thai 30 days in advance so that

shareholders have more time to decide on the important issues.

4) Before each meeting, the chairman will introduce directors, management team members, the
external auditor and the legal advisor who will act as a moderator. After explaining the Company’s rules on
voting and vote counting for individual agenda items, the chairman of the meeting must clearly address how to
vote on each agenda item. Once information has been provided for each item, the chairmen gives the floor to
all attendants to express opinions or recommendations and ask questions, giving adequate time for debate.
The chairman and the management are to address and answer all questions clearly and precisely. For the
election of directors, individual votes are required. Voting tickets will be used where shareholders wish to make
objection votes, abstention votes or splitting votes and will be kept for later inspection. The Company will
record the resolutions of the meeting by classifying into approval votes, objection votes and abstention votes
for each agenda in writing and will also record in details the questions, answers and opinions made during the
meeting.The chairman ensures that the meeting ensures that the meeting proceeds according to the order of
the agenda and does net add an item without notifying shareholders in advance.

5) After each meeting , The Company duly submits the minutes, with voting records and every
question raised by shareholders to SET and the SET board within 1 day after the meeting. It also duly
submits the report of the shareholders’ meeting with minutes, voting records and every question raised by
shareholders to SET and the SET board within 14 days after the meeting. The Company disclosed the

minute of meeting at the Company’ website www.thantawan.com to allow time for the shareholders to review

as before the next meeting.

6 )The Company views that quality of the disclosure of significant information, both financial and non
financial, is very important. The information shall be accurate, clear, update, timely, and transparent. The
information shall not be one-sided but include both positive and negative information. The information must be
equally accessible to all shareholders. However, the disclosure of information shall not create too much cost for
the Company or cause the Company to lose its competitiveness. The Board of Directors gives high priority to

significant information disclosure that strictly follows related rules and regulations. Examples are immediate
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disclosure of significant information to the general public, immediate clarification in case of rumors or related
news, action taken in case of irregular stock trading, no disclosure of push-up information without reasons and

insider’s trading.

Chapter 2 Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

The Board of Directors gives a priority to the rights and equality of shareholders. THIP's
shareholders are equally entitled to access adequate information in a timely manner and also have a right to
attend and vote at a shareholders’ meeting to amend the company’s major policy ,to elect and remove
director, and to determine a profit sharing. Shareholders are allowed to express their viewpoints, advise,
request explanations or ask questions on an equal basis.

1) The Company discloses sufficient information to the shareholders and on time regarding the
operations, policy and information regarding connected transactions correctly and in full as well as
discloses information necessary for shareholders to make decisions though the website of the Company

www.thantawan.com and at the website www.set.or.th

2 ) To maintain the rights of those shareholders who cannot attend in person, they can appoint
proxies or delegate their votes to any the Company’s independent director in attendance. To this and, The
Company has specified these independent directors’ names in proxy forms defined by the Ministry of
Commerce for voting on behalf of shareholders without conditions.

3) The Board of Directors the Management have the duty report their shares held in the
Company’s stake to the SEC. The Board of Directors required report on change of the shares held by its
Directors ,Executives spouses and children who have not attained manhood to be included as an agenda in
the Board meeting.

4 ) Guidelines for Transaction That is or May be Involved with Conflict of Interest with strong
commitment to equitable treatment of shareholders, the Board of Directors has in conflict of interest
management, especially on transaction between the Company and connected person. The Board of
Directors see guidelines prohibiting concerned Directors or Executive who have conflict of interests with the
transaction from being involved in decision making process on such transaction. The Company’s regulation
on the Board of Directors stated that any Director having conflict of interest in particular projects do not have
the right to vote on the matter. The regulation has been strictly applied and implemented.

The Board of Directors through endorsement. Has ensured that connected transactions made by
the Company are in the best benefits in overall regard. Connected transactions are reasonably considered
based on the same pricing and conditions as in transaction with other business. Accurate and disclosure of
such transactions is required according to related regulations.

Chapter 3 Role of Stakeholders

The Company gives importance to the stakeholders and operates business with responsibility and

fairess to all those involved focusing on developing the company to be stable, sustainable and able to

create appropriate revenue for the shareholders and protect the interest and assets of the company with
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prudence of businessman. The Company also looks after the rights of the stakeholders by treating them
equally as follows:

Shareholders : The Company respects the basic rights of the shareholders under law and the
articles of association of the company an treats the shareholders equally. The company makes the
shareholders confident that the information they receive is accurate and their profit appropriate according to
the policy of paying dividends of the company, there is control of connected transactions, protection
against conflicts of interest, protection against use of insider information that is confidential and prohibits
directors and executives who know inside information from using it for personal gain or from purchasing
securities of the company especially within 1 month before disclosing the financial statements to the public.

Customers : The Company values and acts with responsibility towards all customers at all times
and takes responsibility for the quality and standards of its products as promise, keeps customer
information confidential, maintains departments to hear complaints from customers in order to solve
problems for customers.

Competitors : The Company abides by the rules of fair competition through the use of friendly
competition to support each other without damage to other businesses or to relationships with competitors.
In the past the Company has never had any disputes with competitors.

Creditors : The Company complies with the conditions of its trade agreements and obligations to
creditors agreements in all respects honestly and to create confidence and trust with each their.

Employees : The Company established the Human Resources Division to be responsible for
human resource affairs. The Company’s Employees Policy announced by the Board of Directors is used as
guidelines. Human resources are viewed as the most valuable resources and a significant factor enabling
the Company to achieve its goal. The Company, therefore, carefully recruits capable persons with
experience and constantly develops their skills. The Company provides appropriate employee’s benefits
and remuneration, good and safe work environment. Such provision ensures that its employees have good
security and confidence so that they are willing to make good contribution and yield best performance
under their duty and responsibility.

The Company has development to help employees to grow to their full capability, and have the
opportunity to further develop their job knowledge and capability as will as organizational core competency.
The Company provided training plan, internal trainings. To support the Company has developed and
information system for human resources.

The Company has developed to enhance efficiency of human resources. Systematic performance
appraisal is in place where employees performance appraised every six months. Appraisal result is taken
into account when considering annual pay raise.

Environment and Society : Focus on energy conservation, activities that support society for better
life as well as conserving the environment to be sustainable which is a policy that is important and must

coincide with the Company’s business.
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This can be viewed that the company provides guidance for Environmental Management with
justify.  Planning to protect, impact, assessment including disposal of waste or debris with regulations and
standards for environmental management (ISO14000).

In addition, The company has an opportunity for stakeholders to comment or report a complaint

about a common code of conduct. Directly to the President. Via mail or E-mail: pojanard@thantawan.com.

Chapter 4 Disclosure of Information and Transparency

Disclosure of information is an important index of transparency, an important factor to create
confidence to investors and all stakeholders. The Company places importance on correct, accurate
disclosure of information and creates numerous channels of disclosure of information so that all
stakeholders can gain easy access to information , campaigns for directors, the management team and the
staff to be aware of the importance of good corporate governance and transparency in their work and
creates appropriate mechanism to receive complaints and fair treatment both for those who file the
complaints and those who have been complained against.

1) Quality of disclosed information includes accuracy, completeness , clarity ,sufficiency and
timeliness. The Board of Directors has prepared the Board of Director’ Report on Its Responsibility to
Financial Reports and published it together with the Auditor’'s Report in the annual report in order to confirm
the accuracy of the financial statement which has already been audited by independent auditor according
to the generally accepted accounting standards. The Company has selected and regularly implemented
appropriate accounting policy and use carful consideration and best possible projection in preparation of
the financial reports. The Company also sufficiently disclosed significant information in the Notes to the
Financial Reports to ensure that accounting records are accurate, complete and sufficient to maintain assets
as well as allow the Company to identify weakness so that it can prevent possible fraud and irregularities.
The Audit Committee is responsible for the quality of the financial report.

The quality disclosure of significant information to outsiders demonstrates to the public the Company’s
commitment to maintain operational transparency. In addition, it promotes confidence and credibility of investors
and stakeholders. The Board of Directors and the Management, therefore, have ensured that the assigned
persons disclose significant information not only at the minimum legal requirement but also by taking into account
equal rights of investors to have access to such information.

2 ) The Company assigned the Investors Relations unit to be the center for communicating, providing
information and news, and arranging activities to create and strengthen relationship between the Company
and its shareholders. Any interest person can contract the Investors Relations unit at Company Address or at

Tel. 02-273-8333 ext 3244 or at Fax 02-273-8282 ,and Company website at www.thantawan.com and at E-mail

Address: irthip@thantawan.com for more information.
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Chapter 5 The Board of Director's Responsibilities

The Board of Directors values the role and responsibilities of directors in regards of directing the
Company’s business , monitoring and supervising the performance of the management team. And taking full
responsibility for the Company and investors.

1) The Company carefully reviewed the existing Board of Directors structure in order to ensure it
appropriately accommodates their duties and complies with the rules and guidelines enforced and provide by
laws and concerned authorities. Matters under review included the number of Directors, ratio of Executive
Directors to Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and their skills and expertise diversity. The
Company also takes into consideration the Company’s Articles of Association as approved by the
shareholders’ meeting and the Company’ regulations on the Board of Directors. The board of Directors
comprised 9 Directors, which fits well with the Company’s business. The include 3 independent Directors,
representing more than one third of the total member.

2 ) Directors have diversified skills ,knowledge(Engineering ,Science ,Social Administration
,Business Administration ,and law), experience, specialization and age. Such diversity provides greater
benefits to the Board of Directors, especially in supervising the Management's operation and providing in-
depth opinions that includes all concerned factors in each matter. All members of the Board of Directors
have no offence against property record and no involvement in transaction that may cause conflict of
interest against the Company.

3) According to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board, the Chairman of the
Board, who is a representative of the shareholders and is not an independent director, was considered
appropriate for the Company’s business and has been a great support to the Company’s constant success
and business growth due to his knowledge, experience, and skill in Plastic Products.

4 ) The Board lays down measures to disclose information on the involvement of Directors,
Executives, and related parties. The first report must be submitted within 30 days of their first service date with
the Company. For the sake of transparent transaction, if Directors, Executives, and related parties must directly
or indirectly conduct any transactions with the Company at once by indentifying facts about the nature of each
contract, names of counterparties, and their involvement in the contract.

5) The Company Secretary collects the aforementioned information and sends copies of Directors’
and Executives’ involvement report to the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Audit Committee for
acknowledgment within seven working days of the first date when the Company received the report. It is also
the duty of the Company Secretary to keep such reports at the Company’s office.

6 ) The Board of Directors is responsible for shareholders through the management of the
company’s business by considering the company’s vision, mission, strategies, goals, plans and budgets
which were proposed by management. The Board of Directors also has a duty to supervise, monitor and
assess the management performance, using goals and guidelines that shall ultimately maximize

shareholder’s interests while taking into consideration of the interests of shareholders.
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7 ) The Company has Policies and guidelines to prevent connected persons from exploiting their
positions for personal interests. Directors and employees are required to avoid engaging in transaction which
may conflict with the company’s benefit , they must comply with the SET’ s rules given that price and conditions
of the transaction must be in line with other transactions made with other party. Directors or employees having
interest in the transaction must not be involved in the approval process.

To create transparency and prevent conflicts of interest, the Board of Directors announced policies
and procedures for proper use of inside information.

8 ) The Board of Directors has formulated a Code of Ethics for the company’s expectation from
them on the standard practices in relation to every party. Code of Ethics was prepared and distributed to
everyone to disseminate clear information of standard practices in this matter. The Company also monitors
reviews and accesses the compliance of these practices.

9 ) The Company had paid compensation in the same range level of the comparable industry,
which was high enough in maintaining the qualified directors and management. Remuneration requires
approval from shareholders’ meeting. In the event a director is assigned a significant increase in
responsibilities, his remuneration shall be adjusted accordingly

10 ) The Board meet at least once every three months with special meetings convened as
necessary. Notice is delivered to directors at least seven days prior to the meeting. A specific agenda is
established for each meeting with adequate documents. These are delivered in advance to directors to

allow sufficient time for review.

In 2012,the Board had held meeting with normal agenda for 5 sessions . The Board members

attending the meetings were classified as followings:

Name Normal Agenda Special Agenda Total
Meeting Meeting

Mr.Phietoon Trivijitkasem 5/5 0/0 5/5
Mrs.Pojanard prinyapatpakorn 5/5 0/0 5/5
Mr.Viroon Powlinjong 5/5 0/0 5/5
Mr.Surasak Luangarmsri 5/5 0/0 5/5
Ms.Narissai Mahathitirat 5/5 0/0 5/5
Mr.Banleng Sornil 5/5 0/0 5/5
Pol.Col. Taweepun Sangprasert 5/5 0/0 5/5
Mr.Singhchai Aroonvuthiphong 5/5 0/0 5/5
Mr.Teerachai Siritunyanont 5/5 0/0 5/5

The minute of meeting were recorded in written and approved by Board of Directors. The minutes

were available for the inspection of Board members and concerned parties at any time.
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11 ) The Board of Directors had appointed The Audit Committee as a Sub-committee for

overseeing the business operation of the company as followings :

1. Mr. Banleng Sornil Chairman of Audit Committee
2. Pol.Col. Taweepun Sangprasert Director of Audit Committee
3. Mr. Singchai Aroonvutiphong Director of Audit Committee

The Company had not set up Sub-Committee laying out remuneration, but had implemented the
proper process of specifying the suitable basic compensation range. In this regard, the Executive Board
had relied on date of compensation paid in the same size and comparable industry as basis, including the
actual performance of the company for consideration.

12 ) The Company has set up the internal control unit to audit operations of all main works and
significant financial matters to ensure that they had been undertaken according to specified guidelines and
met the relevant rules and regulations and to assess the efficiency of the existing of internal control system.
To assure full independent working of the internal control unit in functioning as check and balance
mechanism, the Board of Directors had mandated the internal control unit in reporting the fact findings
directly to the Audit Committee, and the unit had also been evaluated its performance by the Audit
Committee.

13) The Board of Directors was responsible for the company’s financial statements and information
disclosed in the annual report, under which such statements had been prepared the new accounting
standards and financial reporting standards, with justifiable of selected accounting policies and consistent
compliance, applying conservative judgment preparation, and adequate disclosure of  significant
information attached in the notes to financial statements.

The Board of Directors had maintained the effective internal control system, for assuring reasonably
that the accounting recording had been correct, complete, and adequate to maintain the company’s assets
value, and to notify weakness points in order to prevent any corruption or material abnormal undertakings.

The Board had set up the Audit Committee comprising of Non-Executive Director, who were
responsible in the quality of financial statements and the internal control system, including the opinion of the
Audit Committee in form 56-1 and in the annual report.

14) In the Board Meeting No. 1/2013 on February 14, 2013 the Board conducted a self-assessment
for 2012 collectively, to assess the effectiveness and efficiency of the Board performance. Overall, the Board
was satisfied with the aggregated diversified knowledge and experiences of the Board members, as well as
the openness and teamwork spirit of the Board. However, Board members also recommended more relevant
information to be provide prior to the Meeting, etc.

15 ) The Audit Committee performed an assessment of its actual work covered in 2012 by
reference to the Audit Committee Charter and established best practices. The results showed that, on a
pragmatic basis, the scope of work covered by the Audit committee in 2012 was in line with both the Audit

Committee Charter and established good practices.
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16) The company has defined a term of Directors in the Articles of Association of the company;
section 4, The Board of Directors “clause 14 in every Annual General Shareholders Meeting. The directors
for 1 of 3 shall be retired from their position.

In case the number of directors cannot be certainly divided into 3 parts, then select the

number of directors in closely of 1 of 3”.

Supervision of Inside Information Disclosure
The company has a policy to prohibit and how to care directors and executives of companies in the
implementation of its internal information disclosure. This has not been made public. Used for personal benefit

or the other. As well as for trading. Especially during the 1 month before the fiscal publicly as following.

1. Notify the Executive Committee and note the obligation to report holdings of securities in their
own spouses and children of immaturity. And report changes in holdings of Securities and Exchange
Commission Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to section 59 and penalties under Section
275 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 2535.

2. Notify the executive director and manager of its employees should avoid the use of information
within the company has not disclosed to the public as a substance to change prices of securities used for
personal benefit. Including for securities trading. If the company found that executive directors and

managers of employees guilty of this prohibition. The company will consider legal action.

Internal Control

The company recognizes the importance of Internal control by definability all sections to conduct
good practices. For operation, the Committees have checked to review for the Internal control system
with sufficiency and suitability to business, Accounting system and Financial report with accuracy and
reliability. In addition to comply by law, regulation and Articles of Association by Audit Committees with
independence to check and assess the efficiency of the Internal control system. Also, to recruit an
Internal audit from outside. The Internal audit reports the result to Audit Committee, according to action
plan of 1st quarter. Three of Audit Committees attended the meeting of the Board of Directors No. 1/2013
dated February 14, 2013 with assessment of the sufficiency and suitability of the Internal control system.
Furthermore, they inquired some information from Management, prior to assessment the Internal control
system of the company as of 2012 as adhere to the standard of COSO with the following summary :

Organization and Environment

The Company organizational structure had been specified the duties, authorities and
responsibilities of each director, executive and each department.

Risk management

The Company also gives sequence of risk where assess, monitoring and reporting

activities have been taken in place in order to mitigate such risk.

29



Operation Control

The Company’s organization is written to clarify specific scopes of work, responsibilities and
approval authority of each department in accordance with check and balance policy of the company. The
company has determined clearly procedure in doing related transactions with major shareholder or executives.

Information System and communication

The company is being implemented the Enterprise Resource Planning Program (ERP).
This program will help facilitate the management’s decision making process, increase more efficiency in
utilizing limited resources and lead to supply chain management.

Monitoring

The accurate and timely information system is a tool for Board of Directors and
management to closely and efficiently monitor and control the business operation. In addition, the internal
audit and control was constantly carried out throughout the year to ensure that all tasks have been
performed correctly.

Supervision on the use of Internal information : Officers involving in inside information
were needed to report on acquisition and disposition of THIP's securities and any inside information
disclosure should be treated as a violation of company’s regulation

Internal control review and comments of the Audit Committee with the Board in the past
year. The Audit Committee has reviewed the financial statements and internal control systems, there was
no any mistake found in essential part. In conclusion, the company has effective internal control system,
consistent with the company’s auditor’s opinion. As shown on reports of the Audit Committee and reports

from the auditor.
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Report from Auditor

Sor.Chor.168 / 2013

February 14, 2013

Managing Director

Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited

In connection with my audit of the financial statements of Thantawan Industry Public Company
Limited for the year ended December 31, 2012 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Thantawan Industry
Public Company Limited as at December 31,2012, the results of its operations, the changes in its
shareholders’ equity and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with Financial Reporting
Standards. As part of my audit, | made a study and evaluation of the system of internal accounting control
of the Company in order to establish the level of my reliance on such system in deterring the nature,
timing and extent of the audit procedures necessary to enable me to express an opinion on the

Company’s financial statements. An audit includes examining the evidence, on the test basis.

Material weaknesses or other conditions have not been disclosed, however, my study and
evaluation made for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph would not necessarily disclose

all material weaknesses or other conditions requiring attention in the system of internal accounting

control.

This report is intended solely for the use of management and should not be used for any
purpose.
Very truly yours,

Mr.Pichai Dachanapirom
Certified Public Accountant

Registration No.2421
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Dividend payout policy
The company dividend payout policy of annual net profit after corporate income tax. The Board
of Director will consider payment as appropriate as reasonable, financial terms and capital requirements

of both current and future

Table 9: The Company dividend payment

Dividend 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Dividend per share(Baht) * 2.50 2.00 2 0.50
Pay out Ratio (%) * 32.85 30.03 24.57 37.31

Dividend payout for the year 2012 will be subject to the resolution of Shareholders’ General Meeting
session 1/2013 to be held in April 2013.

Related Party Transactions

Table 10 : Related Party Transaction within the Group of Companies

Related Companies Relationship
Transaction (Baht)

Sunflower Co.,Ltd holds 62 % Shares

Nature of Connected Trading Amount

Suntowers Co.,Ltd. (ST) Office rental Baht 8.55 Million

in this Company with Shared directors

In case the company enters into a contract or if there is any connected transaction with the related
party, prices and other conditions shall be strictly based on the market price or fair value. Office rental and
services as stated above are for a normal operation of the company. Prices comparison has been done
independently by the purchasing committee in compliance with the company’s regulation and also comply
with the rules in the Announcement of the Stock Exchange of Thailand regarding information disclosure and
practices of listed companies in connected transactions prior to decision’s making. In addition, the connected
transactions must be considered appropriate by the Audit committee and approved by the Board of Directors.

The necessity and reasonableness of transaction, The company need more space and storage
room to support business expansion and recruitment of more employees.

On September 20, 2010, the Company has entered into office and store rental agreements with the
Suntowers Company Limited for a period of three year expiring in September 2013. Under the terms of the
agreements, the Company has committed to pay the monthly rental and service fees at Baht 502,400 (Baht
400 per square meter) and Baht 4,500, respectively, and is granted an option to renew the agreements for
further periods by giving a notice in writing before the expiry date, and accordingly cancelled previous office
rental agreements dated July 1, 2009.

The rental transactions have been approved by Board of directors who are without interest and
have got an opinion from audit committee that these transactions are on the reasonable market price and
benefit to the company.

Please see notes no.4 of financial statements for year 2012. In the Related Companies of detail

are disclosed in the Shareholding structure of the companies involved in this report.
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Management Discussion and Financial Analysis

a) Results of Operations

During the year of 2012, the company had been selected to get the Outstanding Company
Performance award with Set Market Capitalization not over than THB 10 Billion of the 4th Group
(Outstanding Company Performance Set Market Capitalization of THB or less 4th Group) at “SET Awards
2012” by the Stock Exchange of Thailand, according to the performance results of the company with
steady growth as the following details :

The net profit of year 2012, the company had the net profit of 91.04 Million baht, increased from

2011 at 60.88 Million baht, rose 30.16 Million baht or 49.54% in year 2012. The company had the net per
share of 11.38 Million baht per share, increased from 2011 at 3.77 Million baht or 49.54%.

Revenue from sales

Revenue from total sales in 2012 was 1,534.69 Million baht, higher than 2010 from the revenue
sale at 1,409.00 Million baht. Total Revenue from sales increased 125.69 Million baht or up to 8.92%.
Revenue from overseas sales 2012 increased from 2011 at 51.43 Million baht or up to 4.65% whereas
local sales in 2012 increased from 2011 at 74.26 Million baht or up to 24.44%.

In 2012, revenue of the company was growing steadily from last year. Although the revenue was
76% of the company derived from International sales which Sales revenue increased 51.43% Million
baht or 4.65%. Even though several parties predicted that the trend of export would be impacted quite a
lot from the global economic uncertainty, European debt crisis, USA.economy problem-on going recovery
over the year 2012, Retained the importance to the previous customers base, expanding new customers
base and Building Alliance Commercial Partnership. These were the main strategies of the company to
emphasis the importance. Also, visited key trading partners consistently for good relationship, as part of
the company to retain revenue from the International sales. Since there were stagnation of overseas
markets, expanded the market for competition of new customers was considerably increased. Hence,
many competitors had focused severely on copyright and as a result the company needed to be careful
for producing products and export to overseas. However, the company set a measure by bringing
production of goods and distributed current products for copyrights registration and making solutions in
long term.

The importance of developing new products was to meet the changing market responses. In
2012, the company continued to focus on produces a variety of products, for consumers to select more
products. Consequently, the company is the greatly competitive advantage than others. To expand the
market in European Union, Countries in Asia, Southeast Asia Countries, Australian and New Zealand
including the other countries which continue to increase more revenues as well as the other countries to

gain more revenue from year 2011 at 60.38 Million Baht or 9.44%, increased to 6.66 Million Baht or 3.86%
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and up to 2.37 Million Baht or 1.39% respectively. On the other hand, the Countries in USA were
decreased from year 2011 at 18.86 Million baht or 15.55%

The strength volatility exchange rate of Thai baht was good benefit to raw materials import, but
effected to the export. As the company had more revenues from overseas at 75% and bought more raw
materials from overseas at 80%. Such that periods, the company used the balance of assets and Natural
Hedging including the use of financial instruments, Purchasing agreement, foreign currency in advance at the
right proportion.  Thai Baht appreciation was good benefit to the company to import the raw material in the
lower price. However the company also affected to the export sector, according to the Thai Baht appreciation.
Anyhow, Risk management continued to the good benefit to the company. From several years, the company
gained profits from currency exchange at 6.04 Million baht in year 2012, decreased from last year at 0.89
Million baht or 12.82%. Nevertheless, the company had followed the volatility of the exchange at all times, to
prevent the damage that maybe caused as the above mentioned.

For the domestic market, market demand for products with higher volumes. The company has
expanded its distribution channels and market expansion to the major customer groups, they required the
design products for example; Shopping bag. To get in touch with the consumer groups directly was
another way to give them with convenience and easy to buy the products. Under such the affect on the
growth rate of domestic countries, in year 2012 the sales volume more increased than the year of 2011 at
74.27 Million baht or up to 24.45%.

For Debtor management over the past year 2012, the company managed and followed up the
debt collection with satisfactory from the period of the collecting debts by average for 37 days In 2012,
the allowance for doubtful accounts at 3.34 Million baht or 1.92%. In 2011,the company had the
allowance for doubtful accounts at 1.11 Million baht or 0.78%. The increase allowance for doubt
accounts occurred from the normal business of the company for overdue debt. The company considered
by calculation of the allowance for doubtful accounts, based on the period of debtor’'s overdue. If any
overdue of the debtor failed to pay it, it was likely to set the allowance for doubt accounts at the rate of

100% debt outstanding at the end of fiscal year.
Other incomes

In 2012, the company had other income in total of 21.77 Million baht, increased from last year at
0.99 Million baht or 4.75%, mainly from :

- Revenue taxable compensation increased 0.77 Million baht or 23.19% as year 2012 the
company imported raw materials and entitled to refund under section 19 with manufacturing and export
the products increasingly.

- Revenue from selling waste products, increased 0.66 Million baht, or 18.76% which was the
normal waste products from manufacturing process including the products that were not verified and
could not distribution. By the way, the company were trying to find a way to rectify and reduce the waste

form the production line with high efficiency.
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- Interest income increased 0.34 Million baht or 29.78% During the year, the company had
managed cash flow to more deposit short term with institutions for 4-6 months fixed deposit, interest rate
of 3.05-3.50 per year. Consequently, the company received a compensation of deposit interest rates
increasingly.

- Profit from the decrease of exchange rate at 0.89 Million baht or 12.82% according to the

high volatility appreciation.

Table 11 : Revenue by product

2012 2011 2010
Income Income Income
Type of product
(Million % (Million % (Million %
baht) baht) baht)
General plastic bag 1,169.83 76.23 1,054.99 74.89 922.95 76.83
Drinking straws 236.09 15.38 206.16 14.62 175.00 14.57
Other products 128.77 8.39 147.84 10.49 103.32 8.60
Total 1,534.69 100.00 1,409.00 100.00 1,201.27 | 100.00

Table 12 : Volume by product

2012 2011 2010
Type of product Volume Volume Volume
% % %
(Ton) (Ton) (Ton)

General plastic bag 11,215.79 83.00 9,763.02 81.97 8,950.18 82.76
Drinking straws 1,940.38 14.36 1,654.39 13.89 1,351.65 12.50
Other products 356.39 2.64 492.90 4.14 512.69 4.74

Total 13,512.56 100.00 11,910.31 100.00 | 10,814.52 | 100.00

Products of the company were mainly produced by customer’s order (Made to Order)
both domestic and overseas countries. By producing 2 main types for launching to the market and the
other products that purchase for retailing as follows :

1. General plastic bags product

Performance results in 2012, revenue from General plastic bags sold increasingly from
2011 at 114.84 Million baht, or 10.88%. Sales volume increased 1,452.77 ton, or 14.88%. The reason of
the increasingly derived from receiving more orders and price adjustment during the year. Such these

issues, led to high revenue from sales and sales volume of General plastic bags.

35



2. Drinking straws product
Performance results in 2012, revenue from Drinking straws sold increasingly from the
year 2011 at 29.92 Million baht or 14.51%. Sales volume increased 285.99 ton, or 17.29%. The reason
of the increasingly derived from receiving more orders together with adjusting price during the year.
Such these issues, led to high revenue from sales and sales volume of Drinking straws.
3. Other products
Performance results 2012, revenue from the other products were selling decreasingly from
2011 at 19.07 Million baht or 12.90%. Sales volume decreased 136.51 ton or 27.72%. The main point

was the company received purchasing orders decreasingly.

Cost and expenses

The cost of sales in 2012, increased from 2011 at 75.40 Million baht or 6.49%. as it impacted
by an increase to the minimum wage from Baht 215.- per day to Baht 300.- according to Government
policy. As a result, the production costs was highly adjusted and during the year 2012 the company set
measures to support the adjustment of the wage. In addition, improved the efficiency of machines, the
used of automated machinery to replace manpower rate with the increasing of labor costs from last year
at 13.35 Million baht or 15.88%, factory expenses increased from last year 22.83 Million baht or 10.80%
and raw material costs increased from last year at 29.12 Million baht or 4%

When compared with the cost of sales and revenue in 2012, the cost of sales was equivalent
to 80.57%.Compared with 2011 at 82.41%, which increased to the rate of reduction. The decreased of
Raw material price affected to the costs of the rate reduction.

The selling expenses in 2012, increased from last year at 11.00 Million baht or 17.41% as
sales promotion expenses increased from last year at 3.00 Million baht or 34.07%, Allowance for doubtful
accounts increased from last year at 2.55 Million baht or 796.88%, Freight increased from last year at
1.47 Million baht or 11.64% and salary increased from last year at 1.15 Million baht or 7.28%.

The administration expenses in 2012 increased from last year at 10.20 Million baht or 8.72%
as the salary increased from last year at 4.63 Million baht or 8.59% and bonus increased from last year at

3.96 Million baht or 56.33%.

Finance costs and income tax

The Company's cost of funds was very low at Baht 307,486 and Baht 524,692 in 2012 and

2011 respectively. Interest expense increased 217,206 Baht or 41.40%. For accrued interest payable of
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the company caused from discounted cash flow for employee benefits in accordance with International
Accounting Standard Nineteen (IAS19) : Employee benefits.

The Company’s income tax expense resembled to last year. In year 2012, Income tax was
27.27 Million baht and year 2011 at 27.14 Million baht as tax reduction from year 2011 from 30% to 23%
in year 2012. As a result, the company had an expense of tax similar to last year, in spite of the
increasing profit of the company.

The Company is not liable to income tax other than those mentioned from the further

assessment of the Government agencies.

Net earnings

During the past year of 2011, the company declared and paid dividend funds per share at
2.50 baht, or 32.85% of net Income. For the dividend funds of 2012, declared to be paid from Business
profit, according to the resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 1/2013 which will

be held in April 2013.

B) Financial position
Asset

Total assets increased from 847.28 Million baht in 2011 to 920.09 Million baht. In 2012,
increased 72.81 Million baht or 8.59%, mainly from : .

1)  Total current assets increased 70.28 Million baht or 14.23% with the main issues
increased :

1.1 Short term funds for fixed deposit increased 40.08 Million baht or 200.40%. as during the
year the company sold products increasingly. The company, then, brought cash and some cash
equivalent for short term return of fixed deposit 4-6 months with interest rate 3.05-3.50% per year.

1.2 Trade accounts receivable and bill of collection increased 29.19 Million baht or 20.68% as
during the year the company sold more products and as a result the Trade accounts receivable were
increased by Sales volume. Most of them were International Trade accounts receivable that increased
from last year at 26.85 Million baht or 34.58%. In the quarter 4/2555, the company delivered plenty of
products to customers in overseas countries. Thus, the International Trade accounts receivable in year
2012 more increased than year 2011. For local Trade accounts receivable resembled to the last year by
increasingly 4.29 Million baht or 6.90%.

1.3 Inventories increased from last year at 20.13 Million baht or 10.36%. Most of the increasing
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was goods in transit more than last year at 13.08 Million baht or 329.47%. The goods in transit was the
goods that awaited delivery to the customers in overseas countries, according to the condition of delivery
goods with each other. Factory materials increased more than last year at 3.06 Million baht or 40.58%,
work in process increased more than last year at 2.44 Million baht or 24.25%, finished goods increased
more than last year at 2.14 Million baht or 4.79%.

1.4 Cash and cash equivalents decreased 27.19 Million baht or 21.81% with cash generated
from operations, after paying income tax at 66.33 Million baht, taking part in investment activities at 73.52
Million baht, partly to fixed deposit short term at 40.08 Million baht, Investment in property plant and
equitment at 35.55 Million baht and during the year paying cash dividends to shareholders at 20.00
Million baht.

2) The non-current assets increased from last year at 2.53 Million baht or 0.72%, as follows :

2.1 Land, building and equipment - net increased 4.39 Million baht or 1.46%, partly from
acquiring more properties during the year.

2.2 Net Intangible assets decreased at 1.59 Million baht or 27.37% as there was an
amortization of intangible assets during the year.

2.3 Other non-current assets were not significantly different from last year.

Liabilities and shareholders’s equity
All liabilities of the company increased from 167.29 Million baht in 2011 at 169.06 Million baht.
In 2012, increased 1.77 Million baht or 1.06% as accrued expenses increased 7.70 Million baht or
29.87%, other current liabilities increased 6.18 Million baht or 145.75%, income tax payable increased
5.01 Million baht or 44.77% and trade account receivable decreased at 18.15 Million baht or 16.06%.
The increase of shareholders from 679.99 Million baht in year 2011 to 751.03 Million baht in
2012 at 71.04 Million baht or 10.45% Increased from net income 2012 at 91.04 Million baht and deducted

dividend funds paid in 2012 at 20.00 Million baht

C) Cash flow

Cash flows received from net operation in 2012 at 66.33 Million baht as net profit of 91.04
Million baht when made non-cash adjustments for example; Depreciation and amortization of 37.19
Million baht, income tax 27.27 Million baht and adjustments of the liability assets operation at 0.72 Million
baht Consequently, the company had cash flow balancing net operations at 66.33 Million baht.

Cash flows from investment activities of the company in 2012 at 73.52 Million baht as brought

cash and cash equivalents to short term investments for fixed deposit at 40.08 Million baht, purchased

38



fixed assets at 35.55 Million baht, purchased intangible assets at 0.68 Million baht, cash received from
selling properties at 1.33 Million baht and cash received from interest of bank deposits at 1.47 Million
baht.

Cash flows from financing activities with paying dividend funds at 20.00 Million baht.

As a consequence, the Company abated cash over this year at 27.19 Million baht along with
cash from the beginning of the year at 124.65 Million baht. The balancing of cash at the end of the year

97.46 Million baht (excluding the short-term investments of fixed deposit at 60.08 Million baht).

D) Financial ratios

1) A measurement of liquidity ratio in 2012, the company increased liquidity from year 2011
with checking in 2012 at 3.64 times and year 2011 at 2.20 times. The cause of increasing, the company
increased current asset mostly from short term investment, account payable and inventory. If checked
from quick liquidity ratio excluding inventory of the company, it would be ratio at 2.26 times. Increased
from last year with ratio 1.94 times, however, it was good liquidity ratio of the company and balancing
cash to pay debt for account payable or obligations in the future.

2) The ability to make a profit in the year 2012 showed an effectiveness and profitableness of the
company. In 2012, the profitability competence to overview of the company resembled to 2011.
Considered that the company had gross margin increased. in year 2012 at 19.43%, rose from year 2011
at 17.59%. Partly occurred from the lower raw materials cost together with the good manufacturing of the
company and led the gross margin increasingly. Gross profit from operations in 2012 at 7.62% rose from
year 2011 at 6.19%, increased 1.43%, return on equity of 2012 at 12.12% rose from 2011 at 8.95%, up to
3.17%, the net profit margin 2012 at 5.85% rose from 2011 at 4.26% and increased 1.59% .

3) The asset management achieved a return on the assets of the company, return on total assets
in 2012 at 10.30% (in 2011 at 7.43%) and Return on fixed assets at 29.97% (in 2011 at 19.33%) increased
from last year. As net Income increased in 2012 and related to the increasingly rate of return from the
operation.

4) The ratio of debt to equity in 2012 was 0.23 times, slightly decreased from 2011 at 0.25 times.
The Company had no foreign currency loans. Therefore, there was no risk of interest rate and foreign
exchange-related to liabilities of loans.

Only liability from purchase raw materials whereas the debtor of foreign currency which the

company managed a foreign currency by the exchange of NATURAL HEDGE. We can provide the

39



money to pay for Trade account receivable in overseas. This reduces the risk that might result from

volatility of foreign currency alternatively.

E) The obligations and liabilities in the future

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had liabilities that might occur in the future
by bank. To issue a letter of credit and a letter of guarantees by company. To purchase raw materials
with Trade partner and guarantee the use of electricity of the factory per unit, attention to State enterprise
unit at approximately 38.97 Million baht and 56.49 Million baht respectively.

The Company had entered into a lease with related company, and related transaction of
Three years contract. The contract will end in September 2013, rental monthly rate at 502,400 baht for
office building and 4,500 baht per month for storeroom with yearly at 6.08 Million baht for 2011 and 2012.

In 2013 with rental fee obligations to be paid at 4.56 Million baht.

Remuneration of Auditor
1. Remuneration of auditors (Audit Fee)

The Company made a payment to auditing company for the year 2011 as follows

- Audit fee Baht 510,000
- Actual relevant expenses Baht 4,901
Total Baht 514,901

2. Other services (Non-Audit Fee)

- No Fee.

Report of the Board of Director’ Responsibilities For Financial Statement
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The Board of Director’ of The Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited responsible for
the financial statement of the Company which have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards in Thailand under the Accounting Act B.E.2543 ,and the financial
reporting requirement s of the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities and Exchange
Act B.E. 2535. The Accounting Policies pursued and deemed appropriate and applied consistently with
adequate disclosure of important information in the notes to the financial statements. The external auditor

has audited the financial statements and expressed and opinion in the auditor’ report.

The Board of Director has provided appropriate and efficient internal controls to ensure that
accounting records are accurate, reliable and adequate to protect its assets and uncover any weakness

that may be present in order to prevent fraud or materially irregular operations.

In this regards, the board of Directors has appointed an Audit Committee to be responsible
for reviewing the accounting policy financial reports, review internal controls, internal audit. The Audit
Committee has also reviewed a disclosure of related party transactions. All their comments on these

issues have included in the Audit Committee Report, which presented in this annual report.

The financial statements of the Company have been examined by an external auditor,
Dharmniti Auditing co., Ltd. To conduct the audits and express an opinion in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, the auditor was provided with all of the Company’s records and related

data as requested. The auditor’s opinion is presented in the auditor’s report as part of this annual report.

The Board of Directors believes that the Company’s overall internal control system is
sufficiently effective to ensure the integrity and reliability of Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
financial statements for the year ended December 31,2012. The Board of Directors also believes that all
these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted principles and

related regulations.

%&qg LN

Dr. Ing. Phietoon Trivijikasem
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Thantawan Indurtry Public Company Limeted

41



THANTAWAN INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

42



REPORT OF THE AUDITOR

To The Shareholders and Board of Directors of

Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Thantawan Industry Public Company
Limited, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2012, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and statement of cash flows for the year

then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. |
conducted my audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that | comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for my audit opinion.

*****/2
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Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited as at December 31, 2012, and the results
of its operations and the changes in its shareholders’ equity and its cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards.

(Mr. Pichai Dachanapirom)
Certified Public Accountant

Registration No. 2421

Dharmniti Auditing Company Limited
Bangkok, Thailand

February 14, 2013

2013/117/0148
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THANTAWAN INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

ASSETS
Baht
Note 2011 2010
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalent 32,5 97,457,569 124,645,146
Short term investment in fixed deposit 3.3,6 60,082,346 20,000,000
Trade accounts and notes receivable 35,7 170,346,220 141,162,728
Inventories 36,8 214,430,226 194,301,085
Other current assets
Prepaid expenses 941,991 1,223,682
Input tax and value added tax awaiting refund 6,631,084 7,931,846
Tax card and guarantee on import duty 5,761,907 2,804,218
Others 8,453,716 1,760,823
Total current assets 564,105,059 493,829,528
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment property 3.7,9 43,444,742 43,444,742
Property, plant and equipment 3.8, 10 305,925,533 301,536,487
Intangible assets 3.9, 11 4,215,711 5,810,873
Other non-current assets 2,395,222 2,658,693
Total non-current assets 355,981,208 353,450,795
TOTAL ASSETS 920,086,267 847,280,323

Notes to financial statements form an integral part of these statements.
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THANTAWAN INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONT.)

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Note
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade accounts payable
- Related parties 4
- Others
Accrued expenses
Accrued income tax
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITTES
Employee benefit obligationes 3.13,12
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital
Authorized share capital
10,000,000 ordinary shares at Baht 10 per share
Issued and fully paid-up share capital
8,000,000 ordinary shares at Baht 10 par value
Capital surplus
Premium on share capital
Retained earnings
Appropriated - legal reserve 16
Unappropriated
Total shareholders' equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Notes to financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

Baht
2012 2011
331,496 -
94,559,255 113,037,374
33,484,108 25,777,797
16,200,984 11,193,886
10,424,335 4,236,380
155,000,178 154,245,437
14,056,234 13,043,400
14,056,234 13,043,400
169,056,412 167,288,837
100,000,000 100,000,000
80,000,000 80,000,000
136,800,000 136,800,000
10,000,000 10,000,000
524,229,855 453,191,486
751,029,855 679,991,486
920,086,267 847,280,323
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THANTAWAN INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

THE STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

REVENUES
Sales
Other income
Tax compensation income from export
Sales of scrap
Gain on exchange rate
Others
Total revenues
EXPENSES
Cost of sales
Selling expenses
Adminstrative expenses
Finance costs
Total expenses
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
INCOME TAX
PROFIT FOR THE YEARS
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEARS
TOTAL COMPRESIVE INCOME FOR THE YEARS

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share

Note
3.1

3.1

3.15, 20

3.16, 21

Notes to financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

Baht

2012

2011

1,634,689,216

4,112,651
4,172,799
6,043,042
7,439,290

1,408,998,956

3,338,503
3,513,738
6,931,166
6,998,180

1,656,456,998

1,429,780,543

1,236,534,239

1,161,134,284

74,214,913 63,211,400
127,087,614 116,891,665
307,486 524,692
1,438,144,252 1,341,762,041
118,312,746 88,018,502
27,274,377 27,138,391
91,038,369 60,880,111
91,038,369 60,880,111
11.38 7.61
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THANTAWAN INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

THE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Note
Ending balance, as at January 1, 2011
Less Dividend payment 17
Total comprehensive income for the year
Ending balance, as at December 31, 2011
Less Dividend payment 17

Total comprehensive income for the year

Ending balance, as at December 31, 2012

Notes to financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

Baht
Share capital Premium on Retained earnings Total
issued and share capital Legal unappropriated
paid-up reserve
80,000,000 136,800,000 10,000,000 408,311,375 635,111,375
- - - (16,000,000) (16,000,000)
- - - 60,880,111 60,880,111
80,000,000 136,800,000 10,000,000 453,191,486 679,991,486
- - - (20,000,000) (20,000,000)
- - - 91,038,369 91,038,369
80,000,000 136,800,000 10,000,000 524,229,855 751,029,855
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THANTAWAN INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year
Add (less) Adjustments to reconcile profit for the year
to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Loss (gain) on disposal of fixed assets
Doubtful accounts (decrease)
Unrealized loss (gain) on exchange rate
Employee benefit obligation - service cost
Employee benefit obligation - interest cost
Interest income
Income tax
Net income from operations before changes in
operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in operating assets
Trade accounts and notes receivable
Inventories
Other current assets

Other non-current assets

Notes to financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

Baht
2012 2011

91,038,369 60,880,111
37,192,302 41,655,884
(1,126,139) (952,525)
2,231,069 (315,827)
70,809 627,042
705,348 855,104
307,486 524,692
(1,469,829) (1,132,500)
27,274,377 27,138,391
156,223,792 129,280,372

(31,519,338)

(20,129,142)

(6,008,927)
263,471

(21,701,023)
(54,687,813)
366,487
(170,559)
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THANTAWAN INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONT.)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade accounts payable
- Related parties
- Others
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities
Cash receipt from (used in) operation before income tax expenses
Cash paid for corporate income tax
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipt (paid) for short -term investment
Purchases of fixed assets
Purchases of intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Proceeds from interest income
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend payment
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the years

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the years

SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Non - cash items

Purchased fixed assets under account payable

Notes to financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

Baht
2012 2011
331,496 (203,347)
(24,457,636) 5,660,879
7,706,312 5,914,144
6,187,955 203,629
88,597,983 64,662,769

(22,267,279)

(30,195,748)

66,330,704

34,467,021

(40,082,346)

20,247,251

(35,554,639) (12,859,440)
(680,432) (2,323,996)
1,330,510 952,542
1,468,626 1,063,564
(73,518,281) 7,079,921

(20,000,000)

(16,000,000)

(20,000,000)

(16,000,000)

(27,187,577) 25,546,942
124,645,146 99,098,204
97,457,569 124,645,146
6,013,486 -
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THANTAWAN INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

a)

Address and legal status

The Company registered to be a limited public company under the Public Company Limited Act with
the Ministry of Commerce on December 1, 1994. Its head office is located at 143-144, Moo 8, Soi Kangwal
2, Phetkasem Road, Omyai, Sampran, Nakornpratom, 73160 Thailand.
Nature of the Company’s business

The Company’s business operations are manufacturing and selling plastic products, such as
general plastic bags, thin bags and drinking straw.
Major shareholders

The major shareholder of the Company is Sunflower Company Limited, which is a company

incorporated in Thailand with Thantawan Group Company Limited as the ultimate parent company of the

group.

2. PRINCIPLIES OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATIONS OF INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENT

2.1

2.2

Basis for preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting standards
prescribed by Thai Accounts Act enunciated under the Accounting Profession Act B.E.2547 by
complying with the financial reporting standards for Publicly Accountable Entities. The presentation of
the financial statements has been made in compliance with the Notification of the Department of Business
Development, the Ministry of Commerce, re : the financial statements presentation for public limited
company, issued under the Accounting Act B.E.2543.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where
otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the

Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from such financial

statements in Thai language.

New accounting standards issued during the period and not yet effective

On March 15, 2012, the Federation of Accounting Professions (FAP) has issued the financial
reporting standard TFRS 8: Operating Segments, which is effective for fiscal year beginning on or
after January 1, 2013.

The management of the Company is evaluating the impact on the financial statements when

this financial reporting standard is initially applied.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Revenues and expenses recognition

Revenues from sales are recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods have been passed to the buyer. Sales revenues are the invoiced value, excluding value
added tax, of the goods supplied after trade deducting trade discounts and allowances.

Tax Compensation for export sales in the form of tax card, is recognized as income upon
export by multiplying the determined percentage and the export value based on F.O.B.

Other incomes are recognized on the accrual basis.

Expenses are recognized on the accrual basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, cash at bank and fixed deposits with an

original maturity of 3 months or less and excluded cash at bank that is used for guarantee.

Short-term investment in fixed deposit

Short-term investments in fixed deposits are stated at cost and the interest is recognized by

the rate announcement of the financial institution in the statement of comprehensive income.

Investment in securities

Investments in debt securities and marketable equity securities

1. Investments in securities held for trading are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value
of these securities are recorded as gains or losses in the statements of comprehensive income.

2. Investments in available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value
of these securities are recorded as a separate item in shareholder’s equity, and will be recorded as
gains or losses in the statement of comprehensive income when the securities are sold.

3. Investments in debt securities held to maturity are recorded at amortized cost by the
effective rate method with the amortized amount presented as an adjustment to the interest income.

The fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last working day
of the year. The fair value of debt instruments is determined based on yield rates quoted by the Thai

Bond Market Association. The fair value of unit trusts is determined from their net asset value.

General investments

Investments in non-marketable equity securities are general investments, which are stated at
cost net from allowance on impairment (if any).

The Company records the loss on impairment (if any) of these investments in the statement of
comprehensive income.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net proceeds and the book value of the
investment is recognized as income or expense in the statement of comprehensive income. If partial

investments are sold, the book value of the investment is determined by the weighted average method.
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3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Trade accounts and notes receivable

Trade accounts and notes receivable are shown net of allowance for doubtful accounts, which is
an estimate of the amount expected to be uncollectible, based on historical collection experience, aging
profile of outstanding debts and a review of the current status of existing receivables. Allowance for

doubtful accounts has the following rates:

Aging Rate
Over 6 months - 1 year 50%
Over 1 year 100%

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is calculated by the
weighted average method.

The cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The costs of conversion
above include an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal production capacity.

The cost of purchase comprises both the purchase price and costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the inventory, such as import duties, transportation charges and other direct costs incurred
in acquiring the inventories less all trade discounts, allowances or rebates.

The net realizable value of inventory is estimated from the selling price in the ordinary course of

business less the estimated costs to complete production and the estimated costs to complete the sale.

Investment property

Investment property is the property held with the purpose to earn rentals, or capital

appreciation, or both and not intended to be used in the operation.

Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance on

impairment (if any).

Property, plant and equipment

Land is stated at cost. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and allowance on impairment (if any).

Cost is initially recognized upon acquisition of assets along with other direct costs attributing to
acquiring such assets in the condition ready to serve the objectives, including the costs of asset
demolition, removal and restoration of the asset location, which are the obligations of the company.

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by cost less residual value on the straight-

line basis over the following estimated useful lives:
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3.9

3.10

Buildings and complements 20 years

Building improvements 5 years
Machinery and equipment 510 14 years
Furniture and office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The Company has reviewed the residual value and useful life of the assets every year.

The depreciation for each asset component is calculated on the separate components when
each component has significant cost compared to the total cost of that asset.

Depreciation is included in determining income.

No depreciation is provided on land, construction in progress and equipment under installation.

Property, plant and equipment are written off at disposal. Gains or losses arising from sale or

write-off of assets are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

During the year 2012, the Company has changed the estimated useful life of assets of
machinery from 10 years to 13 - 14 years and estimated remaining value of those assets at a rate of 2
percent of the initial cost in order to reflect the currently conditions of actual use and economic
benefits expected to receive in the future to be more appropriate. These changes shall be recognized
prospectively. Therefore, it is affecting the financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2012,
which depreciation decrease total amount of Baht 4.49 million and basic earnings per share increase

total amount Baht 0.56 per share.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company with finite useful lives are stated at cost
less accumulated amortization and allowance on impairment (if any). Intangible assets are amortized
in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Computer software 5 years
License 1t03 vyears

Impairment of assets

As at the statement of financial position date, the Company assesses whether there is an
indication of asset impairment. If any such indication exists, the Company will make an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. In addition, impairment loss
is reversed if there is a subsequent increase in the recoverable amount. The reversal shall not exceed
the carrying value that would have been determined net of accumulated depreciation or amortization.

The recoverable amount of the asset is the asset’s value in use or fair value less costs to sell.
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3.1

3.12

3.13

3.14

Lease agreements

3.11.1 Finance Leases

The leases of assets, which the substantial all the risk and reward associated with the
ownership of the assets have been transferred to the lessee, titte may or may not eventually be
transferred to the lessee under the finance lease arrangements, are classified as finance
leases. The lessee is to record the finance lease as an asset and obligation at an amount
equal to the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the minimum lease payment
whichever is lower. The interest expense is charged to the statements of income over the lease
period. The leased asset is depreciated over the useful life.

3.11.2 Operating Leases

The leases of assets, which the substantial all the risk and reward associated with the
ownership of the assets have not been transferred to the lessee, are classified as operating
leases. The payments made under operating leases are charged to the statements of income on
a straight - line method over the period of the lease agreements.
Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has
outstanding liabilities arising from legal disputes or obligations as a result of past event and it is
probable that the economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
estimated reliably from the amount of the obligation.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to social security fund are recognized as
expenses when incurred.
Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans)

The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payments to employees upon
retirement under the Company’s article and labour law. The Company treated these severance payment

obligations as a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified
independent actuary, using the projected unit credit method. Such determination is made based on
various assumptions, including discount rate, future salary increase rate, staff turnover rate, mortality

rate, and disability rate.

Management benefit expenses

Management benefit expenses represents the benefits paid to the Company’s management
such as salaries and related benefit including the benefit paid by other means. The Company’s

management is the persons who are defined under the Securities and Exchange Act.
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3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

Income tax

The Company records income tax expense, if any, based on the amount currently payable under
the Revenue Code at the income tax rates (year 2012 : 23%, year 2011 : 30%) of net profit before income
tax, after adding back certain expenses which are non-deductible for income tax computation purposes,
and less certain transactions which are exemption or allowable from income tax.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares which are issued and paid up during the year.

Transactions in foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies during the period are translated into Baht at the rates of

exchange prevailing on the transaction date.

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the period are translated
into Baht at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Gain or loss on translation is included in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Using of accounting estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results may

differ from those estimates.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Company has estimated an allowance for doubtful accounts from the amount expected to
be uncollectible based on historical collection experience, aging profile of outstandings debts and a

review of the current status of existing receivables, as resulting to the rate described in note 3.5.

Allowance for diminution in value of inventories
The Company has estimated an allowance for goods with the net realizable value below cost. The
estimates are based on the selling price that has been agreed with the customers and selling price trend in the

market.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The management determines the estimated useful life and residual value for the Company’s
property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets. The management must review the useful life
and residual value when they are different from the estimates in the previous period or there is the

write-off of deteriorated or unused assets by selling or discontinuation of use.
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3.19 Related parties

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
control, or are controlled by, or are under common control with, the company, including holding
companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries are related parties of the company. Associates and
individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the company that gives
them significant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel, including directors and
officers of the company and close members of the family of these individuals and companies
associated with these individuals also constitute related parties.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance

of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

4. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

41 The Company has transactions with related parties. The interim financial statements reflect the effect
of these transactions on the basis determined by the companies concerned under their policy over
sale/purchase of goods which are stated that they will be compared with market price or fair value.

Significant transactions occurred between the Company and related parties for years ended

December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows :

Baht
Relation Pricing Policy 2012 2011
Rental and service expenses paid to related parties
- Sun Tower Co., Ltd. Affiliated Company Market price 8,548,935 8,095,976
- Sun Flower Enterprise Co., Ltd. Affiliated Company Market price 72,332 13,696

As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, the outstanding balances with related parties are as follows :

Baht

2012 2011

Trade accounts payable - related party
Sun Tower Co.,Ltd. 331,496 -

On September 20, 2010, the Company had entered into office and store rental agreements with Sun
Towers Company Limited for a period of three (3) years expiring on September 2013. Under the terms of the
agreements, the Company has committed to pay the monthly rental and service fees at Baht 502,400 (Baht
400 per square meter) and Baht 4,500, respectively, and is granted an option to renew the agreements for
further periods by giving a notice in writing before the expiry date, and accordingly cancelled previous

office rental agreements on July 1, 2009.
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4.2 Key management’s remuneration

Baht
2012 2011
Short-term employee benefits 32,935,632 26,467,864
Post-employment benefits 282,872 315,554
Total 33,218,504 26,783,418
5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consisted of:
Baht
2012 2011
Cash in hand 256 14,465
Petty cash 120,000 100,000
Cash at banks - current accounts 3,442,070 2,577,228
Cash at banks - savings accounts 93,895,243 91,859,668
Fixed deposits - 3 months - 30,093,785
Total 97,457,569 124,645,146

Savings accounts carries interest at the floating rate, which are set by banks.

6. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT IN FIXED DEPOSIT

As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company has deposited cash with a financial institution fixed
deposit term 4 - 6 months totaling Baht 60.08 million and Baht 20.00 million, respectively. The interest rate is

3.05% - 3.50% per annum (year 2011: 3.50% per annum).

7. TRADE ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

Trade accounts and notes receivable consisted of :

Baht
2012 2011

Domestic accounts receivable 66,449,986 62,157,534
Foreign accounts receivable 104,361,571 77,506,582
Domestic post-dated cheques 1,881,382 1,509,420
Foreign post-dated cheques 991,112 1,095,954
Total 173,684,051 142,269,490
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (3,337,831) (1,106,762)
Trade accounts and notes receivable 170,346,220 141,162,728
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8.

9.

As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had overdued accounts receivable of 17 and 18

accounts, respectively. The accounts receivable are categorized by aging as follows :

Baht
2012 2011

Undue 127,807,834 101,907,344
Up to 3 months 39,069,258 36,325,393
Over 3 months to 6 months 492,597 298,735
Over 6 months to 12 months 2,829,666 51,765
Over 12 months 612,202 1,080,879
Total 170,811,557 139,664,116
Allowance for doubtful accounts 3,337,831 1,106,762
Doubtful accounts increase (decrease) during the period 2,231,069 (315,827)

As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, most of foreign accounts receivable were in U.S. dollar currency.

INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of :

Baht
2012 2011

Finished goods 46,806,291 44,665,930
Work in process 12,501,158 10,058,669
Raw materials 127,476,773 128,068,387
Factory supplies 10,598,720 7,539,094
Goods in transit 17,047,284 3,969,005
Total 214,430,226 194,301,085

Less Allowance for devalue of inventories - -
Inventories 214,430,226 194,301,085

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Company had land located at Kabinburi district in Prachinburi. The total area is 181 rai 3 ngarn 62
square wah. Currently, the land is not used in any operation, which has cost of Baht 43.45 million and fair value
at Baht 111.30 million which valued by Comparison Approach method as independent appraiser’s report dated

February 8, 2012
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10.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consisted of :

At Cost
Land and improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Tools and equipment
Office furniture, fixtures and
equipment
Vehicles
Construction in
machinery

under installation

Total
Less Accumulated depreciation
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Tools and equipment
Office furniture, fixtures and
equipment
Vehicles
Total

Property, plant and equipment

progress  and

At Cost
Land and improvements
Buildings and building improvements
Machineries and equipment
Tools and equipment
Office furniture, fixtures and
equipment
Vehicles
Construction in
machineries

under installation

Total
Less Accumulated depreciation
Buildings and building improvements
Machineries and equipment
Tools and equipment
Office furniture, fixtures and
equipment
Vehicles
Total

Property, plant and equipment

progress  and

Baht
Balance per Additions Deduction Transfers Balance per
book book
as at January in (out) as at December
1,2012 31,2012
101,462,738 - - - 101,462,738
244,851,752 603,520 - 5,978,188 251,433,460
353,335,521 11,333,885 (5,278,943) (167,528) 359,222,935
50,982,183 2,935,780 - 987,528 54,905,491
11,615,587 1,069,430 - - 12,685,017
19,375,127 1,777,570 - 21,152,697
240,000 21,789,939 - (6,798,188) 15,231,751
781,862,908 39,510,124 (5,278,943) - 816,094,089
(136,644,549) (18,313,397) - - (154,957,946)
(274,910,415) (10,918,062) 5,074,572 167,523 (280,586,382)
(41,816,197) (4,092,552) - (167,523) (46,076,272)
(9,903,671) (658,759) - - (10,562,430)
(17,051,589) (933,937) - - (17,985,526)
(480,326,421) (34,916,707) 5,074,572 - (510,168,556)
301,536,487 305,925,533
Baht
Balance per Additions Deduction Transfers Balance per
book book
as at January in (out) as at December
1, 2011 31, 2011
101,462,738 - - - 101,462,738
242,208,952 292,800 - 2,350,000 244,851,752
349,962,572 3,094,815 (1,535,823) 1,813,957 353,335,521
47,884,893 3,124,290 - (27,000) 50,982,183
10,591,503 997,084 - 27,000 11,615,587
19,282,632 1,256,495 (1,164,000) - 19,375,127
310,000 4,093,957 - (4,163,957) 240,000
771,703,290 12,859,441 (2,699,823) - 781,862,908
(117,428,801) (19,215,748) - - 136,644,549
(261,362,017) (15,084,207) 1,535,809 - 274,910,415
(37,935,267) (3,880,930) - - 41,816,197
(9,284,225) (619,446) - - 9,903,671
(17,346,795) (868,791) 1,163,997 - 17,051,589
(443,357,105) (39,669,122) 2,699,806 - 480,326,421

328,346,185

301,536,487
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Depreciation for the years ended December 31, Baht

2012 (Baht 28.72 million included in cost of sales, and the balance in administrative expenses) 34,916,707

2011 (Baht 32.97 million included in cost of sales, and the balance in administrative expenses) 39,669,122

As at December 31, 2012, the Company had buildings and building improvements, machineries and
equipment, tools and equipment, office furniture fixture and equipment and vehicles, which are fully
depreciated but are still used in the amount of Baht 75.34 million, 215.05 million, 35.54 million, 9.01 million

and 15.90 million, respectively.

11. INTANGIBLE ASSESTS

Intangible assets consisted of :

Baht
Balance per Additions Deduction Transfers Balance per
book as at in (out) book as at
January 1, 2012 December 31,
2012
At Cost
Computer software 8,016,181 - - - 8,016,181
License 1,040,936 680,432 - - 1,721,368
Total 9,057,117 680,432 - - 9,737,549
Less Accumulated amortization
Computer software (2,605,892) (1,740,684) - - (4,346,576)
License (640,352) (534,910) - - (1,175,262)
Total (3,246,244) (2,275,594) - - (5,521,838)
Intangible assets, net 5,810,873 4.215,711
Baht
Balance per Additions Deduction Transfers Balance per
book as at in (out) book as at
January 1, 2011 December 31,
2011
At Cost
Computer software 6,277,721 1,738,460 - - 8,016,181
License 730,118 585,535 (274,717) - 1,040,936
Total 7,007,839 2,323,995 (274,717) - 9,057,117
Less Accumulated amortization
Computer software (1,150,908) (1,454,984) - - (2,605,892)
License (383,291) (531,778) 274,717 - (640,352)
Total (1,534,199) (1,986,762) 274,717 - (3,246,244)
Intangible assets, net 5,473,640 5,810,873
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Baht

2012 2011

Amortization for the years 2,275,594 1,986,762

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The movement of the employee benefit obligations for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
as follow:

The statements of financial position

Baht
2012 2011
Defined benefit plan obligations as at January 1, 13,043,400 11,663,604
Benefits paid by the plan - -
Current service cost and interest cost 1,012,834 1,379,796
Defined benefit plan obligations as at December 31, 14,056,234 13,043,400
Expenses recognized in the statements of comprehensive income
Baht
2012 2011

Current service cost

Cost of sales 147,065 178,288

Administrative expenses 520,900 631,496

Selling expenses 37,383 45,320
Total 705,348 855,104
Interest cost on employee benefit obligations 307,486 524,692
Total 1,012,834 1,379,796
Assumptions in the estimates based on actuarial principles

Percentage

Discount rate 4.19 and 4.27
Salary increase rate 1.84 and 4.97
Employee turnover rate 0 to 66
Mortality rate (of mortality table B.E. 2540) 50 and 100
Disability rate (of mortality table B.E. 2540) 10 and 15
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13. CREDIT FACILITIES WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

14.

15.

16.

As at December 31, 2012, the Company had bank overdraft line of Baht 21 million and other credit
facilities e.g. packing credit, letter of credit, trust receipt, letter of guarantee and forward foreign exchange
contract totalling Baht 745.50 million. These credit facilities are free of collateral.

As at December 31, 2011, the Company had bank overdraft line of Baht 21 million and other credit
facilities e.g. packing credit, letter of credit, trust receipt, letter of guarantee and forward foreign exchange

contract totalling Baht 785.50 million. These credit facilities are free of collateral.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

14.1  Guarantee
As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had contingent liabilities from the issuance
of letters of credit and guarantees by banks for purchase of raw materials and guarantee the use of
electricity to the state enterprise in the total amount of Baht 38.97 million and Baht 56.49 million,
respectively.
14.2 Operating leases and service agreements
The Company has entered into several leases and service agreements in respect of building
rental. As at December 31, 2012, the Company had commitments to pay the rentals and related

service fees under the agreements as follows :

(Million Baht)
Payable within Amount
1 year 4.59
2 to 5 years -
Thereafter -
4.59

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it has an appropriate

financial structure and preserves the ability to continue its business as a going concern.

LEGAL RESERVE

This represents the reserve which the Company appropriates under the provisions of the Limited
Public Company Act B.E. 2535 which require the Company to appropriate at least 5% of its annual profit for
the period after deduction of the deficit brought forward (if any) as reserve fund until the reserve reaches
10% of authorized share capital. As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, the legal reserve reached 10% of

authorized share capital. The reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
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17. APPROPRIATION OF EARNINGS
According to the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No.1/2012 on April 26, 2012, it had

resolution to pay the dividend from the Company’s operations in the year 2011 at the rate of Baht 2.50 per
share for 8 million shares totaling Baht 20.00 million.

According to the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No.1/2011 on April 26, 2011, it had
resolution to pay the dividend from the company’s operations in the year 2010 at the rate of Baht 2.00 per

share for 8 million shares totaling Baht 16.00 million.

18. Financial information by segment

Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited manufactures plastic products, which divided into two
main products : straw and bag. Products purchased for sale are as others. The results of its operations for

the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are summarized as follows :

Baht
Bag 2012 2011
Straw products products Others Total Total
Foreign sales : 2012 159,658,616 959,070,703 37,880,782 1,156,610,101
12011 154,257,516 880,246,018 70,674,769 1,105,178,303
local sales 12012 76,430,089 210,762,089 90,886,937 378,079,115
12011 51,912,392 174,742,973 77,165,288 303,820,653
Total 12012 236,088,705 1,169,832,792 128,767,719 1,5634,689,216
12011 206,169,908 1,054,988,991 147,840,057 1,408,998,956
Gross profit
12012 45,714,288 234,292,646 18,148,042 298,154,976
12011 38,461,817 191,820,421 17,582,435 247,864,673
Profit from Operations
12012 30,511,553 180,399,042 21,229,134 232,139,729
12011 24,158,332 147,809,303 20,145,251 192,112,886

As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation

are summarized as follows:

Baht
Straw Bag Other 2012 2011
products Products Total Total
Assets used by products
12012 12,753,438 204,882,916 5,717,668 223,354,022
12011 15,719,608 202,096,684 4,875,810 222,692,102
Common assets 82,571,511 78,844,385
Total property, plant and
equipment - net 305,925,533 301,536,487
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19.

20.

21.

22.

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Significant expenses by nature for the years ended December 31,

Raw materials used

Change in finished goods and work in process
Employee benefit expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Rental

CORPORATE INCOME TAX

Corporate income tax consisted of:

Main components of corporate income tax expense (revenue)
Profit for the period before corporate income tax
Adjustments to taxable income

Expenses - Not tax deductible
Expenses (Reversal) - Tax deductible

Taxable profit

Corporate income tax

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Baht
2012 2011
651,112,312 655,895,529
(4,582,850) (6,976,117)
241,199,884 207,203,713
37,192,302 41,655,884
7,259,705 6,749,890
Baht
2012 2011
118,312,746 88,018,502
577,419 3,273,623
(305,916) (830,822)
118,584,249 90,461,303
27,274,377 27,138,391

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the years by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares, which are issued and paid-up during the year.

Profit for the years of ordinary shareholders (Baht)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Shares)
Basic earnings per share (Baht per share)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
221

Financial risk management

2012 2011
91,038,369 60,880,111
8,000,000 8,000,000
11.38 7.61

The Company’s financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No. 107

“Financial Instruments :

Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash

equivalents, trade accounts and notes receivable. The financial risks associated with these financial

instruments and how they are managed is described below.

Credit risk

The Company’s exposure to credit risk relates primarily to trade accounts and notes

receivable. The management controls the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and

procedures. Therefore, the Company does expect to receive the significant damage from granting

credit facility. In addition, the Company does not have high concentration of credit risk due to large
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and diverse customer base. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of

trade accounts and notes receivable as stated in the statement of financial position.

Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks, short term

investment in fixed deposit, bank overdraft and short term loan from financial institute. However, since

most of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates based on market rate or

fixed interest rates which are close to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal.

Significant financial assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 can be classified

by type of interest rates. For the financial assets and liabilities with fixed interest rates can be

classified based on the maturity date, or the new interest rate defining date (if this occurs before the

maturity date) as follows:

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent
Short term investment in fixed
deposit

Trade accounts and notes
receivable

Financial liabilities

Trade accounts payable

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent
Short term investment in fixed
deposit

Trade accounts and notes

receivable

As at December 31, 2012

Fixed interest rates

Within 1 1-5 Floating No interest
year years interest rate rate Total Interest
based on rate
market rate
(Million Baht)  (Million Baht)  (Million Baht) (% per
year)
- - 93.90 3.56 97.46 0.50 - 0.65
60.08 - - - 60.08 3.05-3.50
- - - 170.35 170.35 -
- - - 94.89 94.89 -
As at December 31, 2011
Fixed interest rates
Within 1 1-5 Floating No interest
year years interest rate rate Total Interest
based on rate
market rate
(Million Baht)  (Million Baht)  (Million Baht) (% per
year)
30.09 - 91.86 2.69 124.64 0.50 - 3.00
20.00 - - 20.00 3.35
- - - 141.16 141.16 -
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As at December 31, 2011

Fixed interest rates

Within 1 1-5 Floating No interest
year years interest rate rate Total Interest
based on rate

market rate

Financial liabilities

Trade accounts payable - - - 113.04 113.04 -

Foreign currency risk
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from trading transactions that are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Company seeks to reduce this risk by entering into forward
exchange contracts when it considers appropriate. Generally, the forward contracts mature within one year.
The balances of financial assets and liabilites denominated in foreign currencies as at December

31, 2012 and 2011 are summarized below.

Financial Financial Asset/liability exchange rates
Assets Liabilities as at December 31, 2012
Foreign currencies (Thousand Baht) (Thousand Baht)  Baht per 1 foreign currency unit,
US dollar 1,795 1,055 30.3873/30.7775
Euro 311 63 40.1344/40.8603
Singapore dollar 27 - 24.6996/25.2835
Japen Yen - 1,216 0.3500/0.3580
New Zealand dollar - 1 24.8061/25.3718
Financial Financial Asset/liability exchange rates
Assets Liabilities as at December 31, 2011
Foreign currencies (Thousand Baht) (Thousand Baht) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US dollar 1,100 1,406 31.4525/31.8319
Euro 312 6 40.5938/41.3397

As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, there is no outstanding forward foreign exchange contract.

22.2 Fair value of financial instruments

Since the majority of the Company’s financial instruments are short-term in nature or bear
floating interest rates, their fair value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts
presented in the statement of financial position.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged between buyers and sellers
while both parties are knowledgeable and willing to exchange and can be independently negotiated
in @ manner that is not relevant. The fair value is determined by reference to the market price of the
financial instrument or by using an appropriate valuation technique, depending on the nature of the

instrument.
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23. BENEFITS FROM INVESTMENT PROMOTION

As at March 2, 2010, the Company has the rights and privileges from the investment promotion from
the Board of Investment under the Investment Promotion Act BE 2520 in the manufacturing business of
environmental friendly products. The benefits are as follows:

- Reduction of import duties on specific machinery as approved by the Board.

- Exemption of corporate income tax on net profits from the promoted operation for a period of 8
years from the date that income is derived from the operation and the reduction of corporate
income tax for another 5 years from the date of the expiration of the period mentioned above for
the net profit from investing at 50 percent of the normal rate.

- Exemption from import duties on raw materials imported from abroad for use in the production
for export for a period of 1 year from the date of first import.

- Exemption from import duties on the imported goods by the promoted business for the purpose

of re-export for a period of 1 year from the date of first import.

As a promoted business, the Company has to follow the terms and conditions specified in the

promotional certificate. Now the Company does not operate the business that has been such promoted.

24. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts in the financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2011 have been
reclassified to conform to the current year’s classification, which does not affect to previously reported profit

for the year or shareholders’ equity. The reclassifications are as follows:

Baht
As reclassified As previously
reported
The statements of comprehensive income
Selling expenses 63,211,400 58,578,047
Administrative expenses 116,891,665 94,741,600
Management remuneration - 26,783,418

25. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on February 14, 2013.
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Profile of THIP's Boad of Directors,Committees and the Executives

Name-Surname Age Highest Education University / Institution Percentage Work Experences (At Least 5 Years)
(Year) Holding (%) Time Position Name / Company / Kind of Business

Mr.Phietoon Trivijitkrasem 67 |Doctorate degree of Chemical&Physical Tronheim University, Norway 0.001 2000 - Present |Chairman Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
Authorized Director Master of Science (Solid State Physics) Chulalongkorn University, Thailand 1995 - 2000 Managing Director Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited

The Role of The Chairman Program Thai Institute of Directors

Directors Certification Program /Fellow Thai Institute of Directors
Mrs. Pojanard Prinyapatpakorn 57 |Master of Social Administration Thammasat University - 2000- Present |Director / Risk Management Director Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
Authorized Director & Master of Housing Development Chulalongkorn University 2010 - Present [Managing Director Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
Managing Director Directors Certification Program Thai Institute of Directors 2007 - Present [Managing Director Suntowers Co.,Ltd.

Finance for Non-Finance Director Thai Institute of Directors 1995 - Present |Managing Director LH Housing Co.,LTD

Role of the Compensation Committee Thai Institute of Directors

How to Develop a Risk Management Plan | Thai Institute of Directors
Mr.Viroon Paolinjong 52 |Master Of business Administration Mercer University of Atlanta, Georgia, - 2009-Present |Director / Risk Management Director Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
Authorized Director USA. 2009-Present  [Director Suntowers Co.,Ltd.

How to Develop a Risk Management Plan | Thai Institute of Directors
Ms.Narissai Mahathitirat 43 [Master Of business Administration Thammasat University - 2005 - Present |Director Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
/Authorized Director Master of Computer Science University of Pensylvania, USA 2006-2010 Deputy Managing Director Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited

Director Accreditation Program Thai Institute of Directors 1999 - 2003  |Assistant Director Bangokok Terminal Co.,Ltd
Mr.Teerachai Siritunyanont 47 |Master Of business Administration commerce - 2010 - Present |Director Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
Authorized Director 2009-Present |Secretary Of Company Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
and Secretary of Company 2009-Present | Vice President - Finance Division Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited

2009-Present |Director Sunflower Enterprise Co.,Ltd
Mr.Surasak Luangaramsri 45  |Master of Business Administration in Mercer University of Atlanta, Georgia, - Present Director Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
Authorized Director International Business USA. Present General Manager Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
General Manager 2004 - 2009 Managing Director MDS Group Thailand
2002 - 2004 Senior Sales Development Manager BMW (Thailand) Co., Ltd

Remark Directors and executives have no family relationship between each other.

69



Profile of THIP's Boad of Directors,Committees and the Executives

Name-Surname Age Highest Education University / Institution Percentage Work Experences (At Least 5 Years)
(Year) Holding (%) Time Position Name / Company / Kind of Business
Mr. Banleng Sornil 72 [Doctor of Philosophy - King Mongkut's University of - 2001 -2011  |Rector Adviser King Mongkut's University of
Independent Director Development and Designed Machine Technology North Bangkok Technology North Bangkok
Master of Science Program in King Mongkut's Instutute of 2009 - 2011 Vice President Of The Sirindhorn International  |King Mongkut's University of
Electrical Power Engineering Technology North Bangkok Thai-German Graduate School of Engineering | Technology North Bangkok
The Role of The Chairman Program Thai Institute of Directors 1994 - 1999 Rector King Mongkut's University of
Director Certification Program Thai Institute of Directors Technology North Bangkok
Director Accreditation Program Thai Institute of Directors 1999 - Present |Independent Director And Thantawan Industry Public
Finance for Non-Finance Director Thai Institute of Directors Chairman of Audit Committee Company Limited
Audit Committee Program Thai Institute of Directors
Pol.Col.Taweepun Sangprasert 62 |Bachelor of Laws Thammasat University - 2009 - 2011 Deputy Comander,Phetchabun Province Phetchabun Province
Independent Director Director Accreditation Program Thai Institute of Directors 1999 - Present |Independent Director And Audit Committee Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
Finance for Non-Finance Director Thai Institute of Directors
Audit Committee Program Thai Institute of Directors
Mr.Singhchai Aroonvuthiphong 52 |Doctor of Philosophy Program in Management |Suan Dusit Rajabhat University - 1999 - Present |Independent Director And Audit Committee Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
Independent Director Director Accreditation Program Thai Institute of Directors Chaiman of Risk Management
Director Certification Program Thai Institute of Directors 1996 - Present |Director Sirin CPA Company
Audit Committee Program Thai Institute of Directors 2005 - Present |Independent Director And Chairman Power Line Engineering Company Limited
How to Develop a Risk Management Plan  |Thai Institute of Directors of Audit Committee
Mr.Chairat Sangcha 45 [Master of Economics National Institute of Development - 28 May 2012-31 Dec 2012 | Vice president Administation Division Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
Vice president Administation Project Analysis and Appraisalz , Monetary |Administration ( NIDA) (Resigned 1 Jan 2013)
Division Economics Jul 2011-Jan 2012 |Supply Human Resources Manager SSL Manufacturing(Thailand) Co., Ltd
2010 - 2011 Director of Human Resources Crowne Plaza Bangkok Lumpini Park
Mr. Thadpong Thitihiranmethi 46 |bachelor's degree King Mongkut's Institute of - 2010 - Present |Vice President - Research & Developme Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited

Vice president-Research &

Development Division and

Acting Vice President - Operation

Division

Industrial Design

Technology Ladkrabang

Division

Remark Directors and executives have no family relationship between each other.
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Profile of THIP's Boad of Directors,Committees and the Executives

Vice President - Accounting

Division

Name-Surname Age Highest Education University / Institution Percentage Work Experences (At Least 5 Years)
(Year) Holding (%) Time Position Name / Company / Kind of Business

Mr.Titipong Tempati 48 |Master Of business Administration University of Hartford, - 2005-Present |Vice President - Export Sales Division Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
Vice President- Export Sales USA. Export Sales Division
Division
Mr.Jarukit Klongsara 38 |Master Degree of Communication Art Kirk University - 2011 - 2012 Vice President - Domestic Sales Division Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
Vice President- Domestic Sales Major in Broadcasting (Resigned 31/03/2012)
Division 2009 - 2011 General Branch Manager (Samui Branch) Siam Food Service Ltd. (Samui)
Mr.Manus Thongpruksalai 45 |Master Degree of Science National Institute of Development - 1 Jan 2013 - Present | Acting Vice President - Domestic Sales Division [Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
Vice President- Domestic Sales Major in Applied Statistics. Administration ( NIDA) ( Appointed 01/01/2013)
Division 2009 - 2007 General Manager Superpac Corporation Co., Ltd.

2009 - 2008 CO-CEO NGV A Transport Service Co.,Ltd.
Mr.Sumeth Puwarie 38 |Master of Business Administration in National Institute of Development - 2010 - 2012 Vice President - Asian Sales Division Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
Vice President- Asian Sales Administration ( NIDA) ( Resigned 01/09/2012)
Division Marketing 2007 - 2009 Senior Sale Manager Dongbu Steel Co.,Ltd

2002 - 2007 Sale Manager United Coil Center Co., Ltd
Ms.Nasaree Ansusinha 44 |Master of Business Administration in Sasin Graduate Institute of Business - 2011 -Present |Vice President - Marketing Division Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
Vice President- Marketing Marketing Administration of Chulalongkorn Unversity (Appointed 13/02/2012)
Division 2010 - 2011 Director, Head of Qualitative Department The Nielsen (Thailand) Co.,Ltd.
Mr.Chaivech Kongkasaen 46 |Bachelor Degree of Mechanical Engineering|Khon Kaen University, Khon Kaen - 2011 -2012 Vice President Operation Division Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited
Vice President - Operation (Resigned 31/03/2012)
Division 2010 - 2011 Project Specialist Manager & Consultant PPG Solarlens Co.,Ltd.

2004 - 2009 Production Manager Rodenstock (Thailand) Co.,Ltd.
Mr.Wichit Pansrimangkorn 53 [Master Of business Administration Thammasat University - 2009-Present  |Vice President - Accounting Division Thantawan Industry Public Company Limited

Remark Directors and executives have no family relationship between each other.
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